NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

YOUR ATTENDANCE IS REQUESTED AT A MEETING TO BE HELD AT
THE GUILDHALL ON TUESDAY, 27 OCTOBER 2009 AT 6:00 PM.

D. KENNEDY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES

MINUTES

DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD
BE CONSIDERED

6. LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS AND INQUIRIES A.
HOLDEN
X 8466

o > 0N

Report of Head of Planning (copy herewith)

7. OTHER REPORTS
None

8. NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL APPLICATIONS
None

9. NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL APPLICATIONS

(A) N/2009/0685- CONSTRUCTION OF MULTI USE GAMES G. WYATT
AREA ON LAND AT DAYRELL ROAD, CAMP HILL. X 8912

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward; West Hunsbury

10. ITEMS FOR DETERMINATION
An Addendum of further information considered by the Committee

is attached.
(A) N/2009/0028LB- PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF INFIRMARY A.
BUILDING AND PROPOSED ALTERATIONS AND HOLDEN

EXTENSION TO REMAINING BUILDINGS AT FORMER ST X 8466
EDMUNDS HOSPITAL SITE, WELLINGBOROUGH ROAD.

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: St Crispin



(B) N/2009/0606- SUBDIVISION OF INDUSTRIAL UNIT AND R, BOYT
PART USE AS BUILDERS MERCHANT (SUI GENERIS). X 8724
EXTERNAL CHANGES INCLUDING AND ALTERING AND
CREATING OPENINGS AND ERECTION OF 2M HIGH
FENCE AROUND YARD AT UNIT 5 MINTON BUSINESS
CENTRE, MAIN ROAD FAR COTTON.

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: Delapre

(C) N/2009/0610- ERECTION OF 4NO DETACHED HOUSES A.
WITH ASSOCIATED GARAGES, ACCESS AND PARKING = HOLDEN
ON BUILDING PLOT TO THE REAR OF 76 CHURCH WAY. X 8466

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: Weston

(D) N/2009/0644- FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION ABOVE ANNEX E.
(AS AMENDED BY REVISED PLANS RECEIVED ON 11 WILLIAMS

SEPTEMBER 2009) AT 21 HUNTSMEAD. X 7812

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: Ecton Brook

(E) N/2009/ 0765- PART RETROSPECTIVE THREE STOREY J. MOORE
SIDE EXTENSION, SINGLE STOREY EXTENSIONS, X 8345
DORMER WINDOW AND VELUX WINDOWS TO EXISTING
BUILDING, FRONT AND BOUNDARY FENCE AT 2 THE

DRIVE/ 3 THE CRESCENT
Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)
Ward: Kingsley
ENFORCEMENT MATTERS
None
APPLICATIONS FOR CONSULTATION

(A) N/2009/0720- CHANGE OF USE OF GROUND FLOOR R. BOYT
FROM A BANK (CLASS A2) TO A BINGO HALL (CLASS X 8724
D2) AND FORMATION OF NEW ACCESS DOOR ON TO
ABINGTON STREET AT 33 ABINGTON STREET AND
N/2009/0772- CHANGE OF USE TO AMUSEMENT
CENTRE AT 31 TO 33 ABINGTON STREET

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: Castle)



13.

(B) N/2009/0744- RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION
INCLUDING: APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT
AND SCALE, PURSUANT TO OUTLINE CONSENT
WN/2006/0013 DATED 19.04.07- ERECTION OF 231
DWELLINGS, ROADS AND SEWERS AND PUBLIC OPEN
SPACE AT FORMER BRITISH TIMKEN SITE, MAIN ROAD,
DUSTON

Report of Head of Planning
(copy herewith)

Ward: Old Duston

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

THE CHAIR TO MOVE:

“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”

R.
SIMPSON
X 7848



SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA

Exempted Under Schedule
12A of L.Govt Act 1972
Para No:-

<TRAILER_SECTION>
A6134



Agenda ltem 2

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 22 September 2009

PRESENT: Councillor B. Markham (Chair); Councillor Meredith (Deputy Chair);
Councillors Golby, Malpas, Mason and Matthews
1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Church, J Conroy, De Cruz and M Hoare.

The Chair welcomed Mr G Jones, the new Development Control Manager, to his first
meeting of the Committee.

2. MINUTES

Subject to the amendment of the minute concerning Application No N2009/0481 to add
a further condition so as to remove the Applicant’s permitted development rights in
respect of the use of temporary flood lighting, the minutes of the meeting of the
Committee held on 26 August 2009 were signed by the Chair.

3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES

RESOLVED: (1) That Mrs Lane, Councillor Meredith and Mr R Clarke be granted
leave to address the Committee in respect of Application
No N/2009/0620 — Proposed Two-Storey Side Extension at
27 Barley Hill Road, Southfields.

(2) That Mr Sterling and Councillor Hadland be granted leave to
address the Committee in respect of Application No N/2009/0610
— Erection of 4No Detached Houses With Associated Garages,
Access and Parking at Building Plot at Rear of 76 Church Way.

(3) That Mr D Talbot be granted leave to address the Committee in
respect of Application No N/2008/1265 — Criminal Justice Centre
Within Use Class C2a With Associated Parking, Landscaping and
Access — Land at Pavilion Drive.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Meredith declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Application
No N2009/0620 — Proposed Two-Storey Side Extension at 28 Barley Hill Road,
Southfields as having previously expressed an opinion on the application.

2. Councillor Golby declared a personal interest in Application No N2009/0593 —
Outline Planning Application for the Construction of a 112-Bedroom Hotel
Complex, Spa and Leisure Facility, Access Road, Car Park and Associated
Development. All Matters Reserved Except From Access, Appearance, Layout
and Scale at Upton Way, Duston Mill as his family had a business in the same

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



vicinity as the application site.

3. Councillor Meredith declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Application
Nos N2009/0700 - Installation of a 7 Jet Water Feature, Repaving and
Installation of Street Furniture, Seating, Bollards, Uplighting etc in Market
Square; N/2008/1265 — Criminal Justice Centre Within Use Class C2a With
Associated Parking, Landscaping and Access, Land at Pavilion Drive;
N/2009/0638 — Demolition of Maple Buildings at 37 Ash Street and the
Erection of a “Places For Change Building” Offering Support and
Accommodation for Vulnerable and Homeless Comprising 48 Self-Contained
Flats Together With Office Accommodation, Day Centre, Training Facilities and
Medical Room at Maple Buildings, 35-37 Campbell Street; and N/2009/0593 —
Outline Planning Application for the Construction of a 112-Bedroom Hotel
Complex, Spa and Leisure Facility, Access Road, Car Park and Associated
Development. All Matters Reserved Except From Access, Appearance, Layout
and Scale at Upton Way, Duston Mill as being a substitute member of the
WNDC Northampton Planning Committee.

4. Councillor Malpas declared a personal interest in Application No N2009/1265 —
Criminal Justice Centre With Use Class C2a With Associated Parking,
Landscaping and Access, Land at Pavilion Drive as his partner was employed
in a building adjacent to the site.

5. Councillor Mason declared a personal interest in Application No N/2009/0638 —
Demolition of Maple Buildings at 37 Ash Street and the Erection of a “Places
For Change Building” Offering Support and Accommodation for Vulnerable and
Homeless Comprising 48 Self-Contained Flats Together With Office
Accommodation, Day Centre, Training Facilities and Medical Room at Maple
Buildings, 35-37 Campbell Street as the Hope Centre was a charity that had
benefited from her Mayoral charity fundraising.

5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED

The Chair was of the opinion that the following matters be discussed as a matter of
urgency due to the undue delay of consideration of it were deferred:

Section 106 Agreements

Councillor Malpas referred to the decision of the Committee on 30 July 2008 that the
Committee receive reports on outstanding Section 106 Agreements. He noted that this
did not appear to have been actioned and that the particular instance that he had
highlighted in respect of the Ashmead Development for the maintenance of the green
space still appeared to be outstanding.

RESOLVED: (1) That the Borough Solicitor and Head of Planning investigate the
situation in respect of the Section 106 Agreement for the Ashmead
development and contact Councillor Malpas accordingly.

(2) That the Head of Planning submit periodic reports to the

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



Committee on Section 106 Agreements generally.

6. LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS AND INQUIRIES

The Head of Planning submitted a report and commented that a further appeal had
now been received in respect of the car wash in the Homebase car park in Weedon
Road. He also indicated that the appeals in respect of Application Nos N/2008/1262
and N/2008/1276 had been dismissed.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

7. OTHER REPORTS
None.

8. NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL APPLICATIONS
None.

9. NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL APPLICATIONS
None.

10. ITEMS FOR DETERMINATION

(A) N/2009/0620- PROPOSED TWO- STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AT 28 BARLEY
HILL ROAD, SOUTHFIELDS

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of in respect of Application
No N/2009/0620 and elaborated thereon.

Mrs Lane, the next door neighbour commented that these properties were north facing
and therefore were on the cold side of Barley Hill Road. The proposed extension
would come right up against their conservatory, which they used as a dining room, and
would further block light to it. She commented that she and her husband had already
taken steps to improve the affect of natural light within their bungalow.

Councillor Meredith commented that he was against this application. There were
several bungalows that surrounded the site and the proposal would be out of context
with its surroundings and would dominate the neighbouring property. He noted that the
houses were designed to have garages added but not this scale of development.

Councillor Meredith, having declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the matter,
left the meeting.

Mr Clarke, the agent for the applicant, was aware that the planners would prefer that
the extension be set back but he commented that the applicant needed the extra space
to create room for his growing family. If the extension was set back then the box
bedroom could not be extended. Mr Clarke also commented that the trees at the front
of the property would tend to break up the view of the frontage of the property.

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



The Head of Planning commented that there was a mix of housing types in Barley Hill
Road generally arranged in groups of like type. He acknowledged the concerns of the
next door neighbours but considered that the effect of the extension would be minimal
on them due to its orientation. It was noted that there would be no windows to the side
elevation of the extension.

The Committee discussed the application.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused by reason of its scale and massing.
The proposed extension would form an incongruous feature detrimental
to visual amenity and contrary to Policies E20 and H18 of the
Northampton Local Plan and the Supplementary Planning Guidance —
Residential Extensions Design Guide.

Councillor Meredith rejoined the meeting.

(B) N/2009/0692- RECONSTRUCTION OF ROOF INCLUDING DORMER
WINDOWS TO REAR FOLLOWING FIRE AT 48 BANTS LANE.

The Head of Planning submitted a report and elaborated thereon.
The Committee discussed the application.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved as the impact of the development on
the character of the original buildings, street scene and residential
amenity is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with Policies
E20 and H18 of the Northampton Local Plan and SPG Residential
Extensions Design Guide.

(C) N/2009/0610- ERECTION OF 4NO DETACHED HOUSES WITH ASSOCIATED
GARAGES, ACCESS AND PARKING AT BUILDING PLOT AT REAR OF 76
CHURCH WAY

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of Application No N/2009/0610 and
noted that a planning permission for a development of three properties on this site was
still extant.

Mr Stirling, the next door neighbour, commented that he believed that the developer
had done a good job to meet the concerns of residents and the site was big enough for
four houses. However, the concern to neighbours was the access road and the
proposed turning space arrangement outside 76 Church Way. He noted that the
owner of 76 Church Way was a builder working for the developer of this back land site.
He noted that it would take a legal agreement to keep the turning space clear and also
that the owner of 76 Church Way had three cars presently; where would these be
parked? He felt that the proposal represented an overdevelopment of Church Way.
Mr Stirling noted that the visibility splay was 4.5 metres wide but then came to a pinch
point of 2.8 metres expanding to 3.5. This seemed to confirm that the access road
would be inadequate.

Councillor Hadland noted that backing out onto Church Way would be acceptable; but
how would the turning circle be enforced? He noted that the four proposed houses

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



were large family properties and one could reasonably expect three to four vehicles per
property. He also commented that whilst the site access was on the outside of a bend
the boundaries onto Church Way comprised high front walls, which gave an enclosed
feeling. He commented that the extant planning permission for three properties was
acceptable but more than this was not.

The Head of Planning noted that it would be difficult to enforce the turning head but
this was critical to the owner of 76 Church Way and it would be in his own interest to
keep it clear. He noted that the Highways Authority were happy with the access width
and he understood the minimum access road width would be 3.8 metres.

The Committee discussed the application.
Councillor Malpas proposed and Councillor Meredith seconded:

“(1) That consideration of this application be deferred to allow further
consultation with the Highways Authority in respect of the access
arrangements to the site.

(2) That the developer be requested to allow the Committee a site visit.”
Upon a vote the motion was carried.

RESOLVED: (1) That consideration of this application be deferred to allow further
consultation with the Highway Authority in respect of the access
arrangements to the site.

(2) That the developer be requested to allow the Committee a site
visit.

11. ENFORCEMENT MATTERS
None.

12. APPLICATIONS FOR CONSULTATION

(A) N/2009/0700- INSTALLATION OF A7 JET WATER FEATURE, REPAVING
AND INSTALLATION OF STREET FURNITURE- SEATING, BOLLARDS,
UPLIGHTING ETC AT MARKET SQUARE

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of application No N/2009/0700 and
referred to the Addendum, which set out the Council’'s Conservation Officer's
comments. He also noted that an archaeological watching brief would be kept on the
development during the engineering works. In answer to a question it was noted that
water jets would be 1.5 metres high and the fountains would not be switched on all day
every day.

The Committee discussed the application.
RESOLVED: (1) That the Committee welcomes the application and raises no

objection to it by reason of the siting and design of the proposed

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



interactive water feature and new street furniture would not have a
significant adverse impact on the amenity or public safety and
would preserve the character and appearance of the All Saints
Conservation Area and would comply with Policy E26 of the
Northampton Local Plan, advice in PPG15 (Planning and Historic
Environment).

(2) If WNDC were minded to approve this application conditions be
attached to ensure that an archaeological watching brief is carried
out during construction and that samples of the materials are
submitted for consideration.

(B) N/2008/1265- CRIMINAL JUSTICE CENTRE WITHIN USE CLASS C2A WITH
ASSOCIATED PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND ACCESS, LAND AT
PAVILION DRIVE

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of application No N/2009/0638 and
referred to the Addendum, which noted that Northamptonshire Police had set out a
briefing sheet outlining the background to the application; providing a summary of the
proposal; a synopsis of the Detainee Release Policy and a letter of representations
from Threadneedle Property Investments Limited in respect of the interpretation of
Policy B14 of the Northampton Local Plan.

Mr Talbot, on behalf of Northamptonshire Police, commented that the proposal was not
a prison but comprised two floors of offices and a custody suite. The proposal would
provide two hundred jobs, mostly for evidence gathering and the supervision of
detainees. The facilities met Home Office Guidance and the design had been through
a committee of excellence. He believed that the proposal would improve Police
efficiency. In answer to a question he noted that the nearest similar facilities were in
Leicester and that this proposal would replace the current facilities at Campbell
Square, Weston Favell and Towcester.

The Committee discussed the application.

RESOLVED: (1) That the Committee raise no objections as by reason of its scale
and use the proposed Criminal Justice Centre would generate
significant employment opportunities and community benefit and
therefore complies with the requirements of Policy B14 of the
Northampton Local Plan. The proposal would have no undue
detrimental impact upon visual amenity and therefore complied
with Policies E14 and E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

(2) This recommendation is subject to WNDC ensuring that the
submitted protocol for the release of detainees is secured by a
Section 106 Agreement along with the matters identified in the
previous report to the Planning Committee as appended to the
report.

(C) N/2009/0638- DEMOLITION OF MAPLE BUILDINGS AND 37 ASH STREET
AND THE ERECTION OF A "PLACES FOR CHANGE BUILDING" OFFERING
SUPPORT AND ACCOMMODATION FOR VULNERABLE AND HOMELESS

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



COMPRISING 48 SELF CONTAINED FLATS, OFFICE ACCOMMODATION,
DAY CENTRE, TRAINING FACILITIES AND MEDICAL ROOM AT MAPLE
BUILDINGS, 35-37 CAMPBELL STREET

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of application No N/2009/0638 and
elaborated thereon.

The Committee discussed the application.

RESOLVED: (1) Thatthe Committee welcomes the scheme and raises no objection
as by reason of its design, scale and use the proposed “Places
For Change” building would generate significant community
benefit and employment opportunities and therefore complies with
the requirements of Policy B14 of the Northampton Local Plan.
The proposal would have no undue detrimental impact upon visual
amenity and therefore complies with Policy E20 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

(2) If WNDC are minded to approve this application then conditions
are requested to be attached to any approval notice to deal with
the following:

e« Contamination — ensure that a condition is attached that
ensures that remedial works are undertaken.

 Refuse and recycling storage — to ensure that details
submitted are implemented and maintained.

 Noise — to ensure that the specification and installation of
appropriate noise mitigation and ventilation measures are
undertaken.

e Air quality — to ensure a further assessment is carried out and
the specification of remedial measures is undertaken.

(D)  N/2009/0593- OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A 112- BEDROOM HOTEL COMPLEX, SPA AND
LEISURE FACILITY, ACCESS ROAD, CAR PARK AND ASSOCIATED
DEVELOPMENT. ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT ACCESS,
APPEARANCE, LAYOUT AND SCALE AT UPTON WAY, DUSTON MILL

The Head of Planning submitted a report in respect of application No N/2009/0593 and
referred to the Addendum, which noted that the description of the development had
been changed by the WNDC to “Outline Planning Permission for the Construction of a
112 bedroom Hotel Complex, Spa and Leisure Facility, Access Road, Car Park and
Associated Development. All Matters Reserved Except for Means of Access, Layout
and Scale of Hotel Complex and Layout, Scale and Appearance of Spa and Leisure
Facility Building and Car Parking.” As a result of this the officer recommendation was
altered to raising concern with WNDC about the layout and orientation of the hotel
element of the proposals. He also noted that the applicant felt that the sequential test
was not relevant to this site and also an objection submitted by Councillor
P D Varnsverry. In answer to a question the Head of Planning noted that the proposed

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



Spa would be some 10.5 metres in height.

The Committee discussed the application.

RESOLVED: That WNDC be informed that the Council objects to the application for
the following reasons:

(1)

(2)

Notwithstanding that the site is allocated in the Local Plan for the
uses proposed, in light of the recently adopted Regional Plan
(Policy 22 and Policy MKSM/SRS Northamptonshire 3) the
Council has strong concerns over the potential impact that the
development would have on Northampton Town Centre and
considers that the application should not be approved without first
demonstrating that the development accords with the
requirements of PPS6 including the sequential analysis of
alternative sites.

That the application by virtue of its scale, orientation and layout,
particularly in respect of the hotel element, should respect the
local character of Upton Way and that any reserve matters of
appearance accord with this and saved Policies D7, E1, E2, E14
and E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

The meeting concluded at 20.24 hours.

Planning Committee Minutes - Tuesday, 22 September 2009



Directorate: Planning and Regeneration

Head of Planning: Susan Bridge

i

NORTHAMPTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Planning Committee

The Address for Planning Appeals is

Mr K Pitchers, The Planning Inspectorate, Temple
Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol
BS1 6PN.

Appeal decisions can be viewed at -
www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Background Papers

The Appeal Papers for the appeals listed.

Author and Contact Officer

Mr Gareth Jones, Development Control Manager
Telephone 01604 838999

Planning and Regeneration

Cliftonville House, Bedford Road,

Northampton, NN4 7NR.

List of Appeals and Determinations — 27" October 2009

Written Reps Procedure

Application Del/PC Description Decision
N/2009/0197 Change of use from Post Office (A1) to Take Away (A5)
APP/\V2825/A/09/2106367/NWF DEL including extraction flue at Booth Ville Post Office, 3 Booth

Lane North.
(NEW IN) Proposed extension & conversion of existing garage to
N/2009/0202 DEL create new 1 bed dwelling with associated parking at Land
APP/V2825/A/09/2111538/WF to the rear of 115 Fairway.

Change of use of part of car park to accommodate car
N/2009/0285 DEL washing and valeting facility including storage container at
APP/V2825/A/09/21/0386/NWF Homebase, Weedon Road. (RETROSPECTIVE)
N/2009/0288 Proposed change of use of part of the car park to
APP/N2825/A109/2108554/NWE DEL accommgdate hand car wash area at The Romany Public ALLOWED

House Kingsley Road.
(NEW IN) Proposed two-storey side and rear extensions and change
N/2009/0290 DEL of use to 4no. individual flats at 48 Greenfield Avenue
APP/V2825/A/09/2113034/NWF ' '

9 wajl| epusby



N/2009/0365

Proposed change of use from laundrette (Sui Generis) to

DEL hot food takeaway (A5) including installation of extraction
APP/V2825/A/09/2108648/NWF flue at 168 Birchfield Road East.
N/2008/0835 3no. New B2/B8 units (sub-divided into 11 units) and
DEL extension of existing B2/B8 units (sub-divided into 10 units) ALLOWED
APP/V2825/A/09/2104719 ) .
at Action Express, 30 Liliput Road.
N/2008/1262 DEL Proposed erection of 3no. Detached dwellings with DISMISSED
APP/VV2825/A/09/2104719/NWF associated parking/garages at 31a Greenfield Avenue.
Change of use from residential (Class C3) to takeaway
N/2008/1276 PC (Class A5) including alterations to roof, installation of DISMISSED

APP/\V2825/A/09/2099559/NWF

extractor unit and provision of rear car parking at 47 Main
Road Duston. (Wild Thyme Cottage)

Hearing Procedure - NONE

Inquiry Procedure - NONE

Enforcement - NONE




Agenda ltem 9

cl

f;‘

 Pamar
B

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27" October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration

HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge

APP: N/2009/0685 Construction of multi-use games area at land
at Dayrell Road.

WARD: West Hunsbury

APPLICANT: Northampton Borough Council

REFERRED BY:

REASON: Northampton Borough Council Application

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION/ CONSULTATION BY:

1.

1.1

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to conditions and for the following reason:

The proposed multi-use games area would provide a useful local
community facility without being detrimental to residential amenity in
accordance with PPS23 (Planning and Pollution) and PPG24 (Planning
and Noise) and have no significant impact on the site of Acknowledged
Nature Conservation Value in accordance with Policy E18 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

THE PROPOSAL

It is proposed to erect a multi-use games area, or MUGA, on land
situated off Dayrell Road. This will provide a useful local facility for
nearby residents.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The land is presently overgrown and is contained within a site of
Acknowledged Nature Conservation Value.



41

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

PLANNING HISTORY
None relevant.
PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:
PPS1 — Delivering Sustainable Development
PPG17 — Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation

Northampton Borough Local Plan
E20 — New Development
E18 — Site of Acknowledged Nature Conservation Value

CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

Internal

Public Protection — no objections.

External

NCC Highways — no objections.

APPRAISAL

Visual Appearance

The proposed games area would be 264m?in area surrounded by a 3m
high green mesh fence behind the goal and a 1m high small open
fence to the sides. As it is to be sited adjacent to the footpath (Dayrell
Walk) the games area would not have a significant visual impact on the
locality. Furthermore, it is located behind the trees which soften the
visual impact of the development when viewed from the nearby
dwellings and it would not be highly visible from the adjoining A45 ring
road.

Nature Conservation

The site is presently an Acknowledged Nature Conservation Value as

identified in the Local Plan. The games area would take up only 264m?
of the site of Acknowledged Nature Conservation Value and be sited by



7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

the footpath known as Dayrell Walk. An ecological survey has been
submitted with the application which has assessed that the planning
application site supports no habitats identified as a priority in the
natural Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP), with no rare plants or animal
species recorded. Furthermore, much of the grassland is not
botanically diverse especially where the games area is to be located.
The loss of this grassland would not have a significant impact on the
biodiversity of the area.

Residential Amenity

The nearest property (1 Joshua Square) is located approximately 15m
away from the propose MUGA and is sited behind a tree screen
planted on the boundary of the footpath (Dayrell Walk). These trees
would help reduce any visual impact. The Council’'s Environmental
Health has no objection to the scheme, especially as no form of lighting
is proposed. Furthermore, the games area is sited near to the outer
ring road, which in itself creates a relatively noisy background.

Parking

Although the use will not have any parking provision, the games area
will be provided predominantly for local residents. The nearby
community centre would be available for occasional parking.
Furthermore, Dayrell Road is wide enough for on-street parking and
the Highway Authority does not have any concerns regarding this
possibility.

Public Safety

Although Northamptonshire Police has not provided consultation
comments on the planning application as such, the applicant has
advised that the Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor has
conducted a thorough environmental audit of the site and approved the
chosen location subject to provision of regular landscaping works to
increase visibility of the site.

CONCLUSION

The proposed multi-use games area will provide a useful local facility
without being detrimental to residential amenity or have any significant
impact on the site of Acknowledged Nature Conservation Value.

CONDITIONS

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.



10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

10.1 Report to Cabinet on 14 October (Iltem 6) seeking approval for NBC to
manage and maintain the MUGA and to act as the Accountable Body

for a Big Lottery grant to fund its installation.

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
None

12. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

12.1 In reaching the above recommendations, regard has been given to
securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate

Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: | Date:
Author: Geoff Wyatt 8/10/09
Development Control Manager Agreed: | Gareth Jones 12/10/09




Land at Dayrell Road, Camp Hill.

c o
.....
A
=45 E &

c -— =
EE T 85 E

=20 - x 3

I




"Jobeuep

|o43u02) Juswdo|eaa( 8yl o} palebsiep aq 0} SUOIPUOD By} JO
Buipiom ayy 0} sabueya Jouiw Jayuny Aue aaibe 0} Ajuoyine
10} @8Iwwo) Buluue|d ayy wolj }ybnos os|e s| Ajuoyiny

‘s|ielap paaoidde ayl yiim adueploooe

[IN} Ul 82e|d 9)E) Jayealsy} [|eus syiom ay| Aiessaosu
alaym sbumelp Buipnjoul ‘syiom asoyl 0} yoeoudde pue
ABojopoyiew ‘sjeusiew ‘edoos ‘ainjeu ‘sjeasawiiy sy} |1Bjap
Ul MOUS [|BYS SHIO0M JO 8|npayos ay] "Aloyiny Buluueld
[e007 8y} Aq Buium ul psaocsdde aq pue 0} papiugns aq

lleys sbuipjing pajsi| 8y} JO Yoes 0} usyeuspun aq 0} SHIOoMm JO
a|npayas pajielap e uolssiwiad siy) o} Juensind juswdojaasp
2y} Jo aseyd yoes uo BupuaWWOoD YoM 0} Jolid

"‘peoy ybnosogbuljjlopa
- (plog ul sjuswpusuie) ‘B)IS |elidsoH spunwipd }S Jewlo4 je sbuip(ing

SMO||0} SB papuswie aq 0} papuawwodal sl 7 UOIPUOD Bulurewal 0] UoISUSIX® pue suonels)e pesodold pue
‘S1901Q) UOIBAIBSUOD) UYlIM SUOISSNOSIP Jayuny Buimojjo4 | Buipiing Atewdiyu) jo uonijowap pasodold - 8200/600Z/N

NOILVNINYI13d 404 SNOILVIITddV

‘peoy ||8iheq 1e pueg|
uo eale saweb asn | Nw JO UoidNIISUO0D - §890/600Z/N

SNOILVIIT1ddV TIONNOD HONOJYWOE NOLdWVYHLYON

uojeoljday

SUId]] BpuUaSYy, OH - 119NN 0D ozmh nouos __ 6 _
H @ _ < NOLdWVHLION s OOON

WNpUappy 1390320 YI/LT




—

Apybisun Ajjeinjosiiysie sj
SUOISUB)X8 Jayuny Jo) Juapaosaid ajgelisepun }18s pinoyd
Buipjing jeuibuo yum AljsUWWAS JO yoeT
yiedjoo} ayi 0} 850J0 00} pue BuuesqiarD
a)Is JO Juawdo|aAdpIanD
eaJle au)

uj Buisnoy Jo Jsjoeleys pue peos yum Buidssy jo iInQ  «

-:spunoJb Bumo||o) 8y) Uo ‘aAlq

8yl Gl ‘€L 9'eg ‘usvsald dUlL 8V vE ‘Y2 22 ‘9L ‘vL' Tl
‘g ‘/ WOJ} PaAIBdal Usaq sARY UONDS[qo JO SiaNe| [BUOIPPY

us9saI] 8y £/oAud YL 2 ¥e (6002 42G0100 YiGL

¥ U1g U0 paAladal sueld pasinal AQ papuswe se) "aous)
Aepunog pue juol) ‘Buipjing Bunisixa 0} SMOPUIM XN|aA
pue MOpUIM JBLLLIOP ‘'suoisudlxa Aalo)s o|buls ‘UoISUBIXd
apis As101s 98Iy} BANDadsoll8l Led - §9.0/600Z/N

"peswsiuny 1z e (600¢ Joquisides
L1 Uo panledal sueid pasianal Ag papusiue se)
Xauue Buisixe sA0ge UOISUSIXS 100}} }Sii - $¥90/6002/N

‘ue|d [e907 uojdweyHoN 8yl jo g3 Adllod
UM aoueplodde uj juswdojaasp Jo piepuels Alojoejsies
B 2Jn28Ss 0} puk AJUBLLE JO S$)$818)JUl BY)] U] :UOSEaY

‘paulejulew Jayealsy)

pue (s)buipjing ayj jo asn ol Buibuug 10 uoednooo

8y} 0} Joud pajuswaldwi uswdo|sAsp JO JUBSWSIUSWWOD
ayy 03 Joud Ajuoyiny Buiuue|d [eoo oyl Aq Buigum

ul paaoidde pue o] papiwgns aq ||eys BuljoAoal Joj sjeusiew
pue asnjal Jo 9belols au) 1o} uoisiaold sy} Jo s|ie1sq

:uonipuo) pasodoid |euonippy

"Ae M Y2unuD 9/ Jo Jeal joid Buipiing
1e Bunjied pue ssaooe ‘sabeleb pajeloosse

UM sesnoy payoels( "ouy Jo uoioall - 0190/6002/N

‘pajuelb s| uoissiwiad

Jl jueoidde ay} 0] papiemio) 8q UBd Jey] UoljeuwloUl
pue sjuswiwod abeulelp papnoul sAeY Ing ‘suoioalqo
SAIJUBISgNS OU pasiel aaey Aously juswuolAUg 8y |

‘Buip|ing ay1 Jo aouelseadde
paysiul joexa ayj 198|j8. 1eY] Jao1y0 ased ay) Jo 1senbal
ay] 1e wabe sy} AQ papiwgns usaqg aaey sBUuIMBIp paloalIo))

"UONI0Y Jed ‘peoy UIBly ‘Bljual) ssauisng UOUIN G Hun
Je pJeA punole aous} ybiy wyZ Jo uoijaald pue sbujusdo
Bunesso pue Buuaye Buipnjoul sabueyd |eussixy
(slBUB9) ING) sjUBYDJIBW SI8p|Ing sk asn Jed pue Jun
[BLISNPUI JO UOISIAIPANS 9AR0Sds0NeY - 9090/600Z/N




"SUOISSNISIP 9S8y} JO SWOINO

ay} Buipuad pausjep s! uopeoldde siy} Jo UoneIspISU0D

Jey} puswWwiWIooas SI i ‘SIS0 DANAM Uim anbojeip ‘uoisng

Buimoj|o} ‘uoissiwlad Bujiuueld suino ay} Yyum awayos ‘peoy Ulely ‘@)S wawi] ysnug Jawlo4 je aoeds

s1yj Jo soueldwos ‘sbujyy Jayjo jsbuowe ‘Buipiebal uedidde uado olgnd pue s1emas pue speol ‘sbuljlamp LEZ JO
9y} pue DAONM Usamjaq suoissnasip BuloB-uo Jo Jybi| u| | uoiosie - 20'v0°6L PeIep €100/900Z/NM JUSSU0d 8uljino

0} Juensind a|eos pue JnoAe| ‘Buidesspue| ‘eouelteaddy
¥I43Q — UONBPUSWILUOIBY POSIAdY :Buipnoul uonesijdde siepew poAlasay - ¥720/600Z/N
190.1S uojbulqy £¢ - LE Je a1jus)

Juswesnuwy JInpy 0} asn jo abuey) - 220/600Z/N
‘19018 uojbuiqy €€

‘d¥VvD 8yl pue | e jeailg uojbuigy 0} UO JOOp SS809B MauU B JO UOIjeWIo)

ABeleng 9Iuouo9T DEN UM J01Ju0d syl Butess Z//0/6002/N 8y} pue (zq sse|D) lleH obuig e o} (zy ssejd) jueg
0} SU0[19alqo Jisy} panIwgns aAey Wes | uonessusbsy DN B woly Joojy punolb jo asn jo abueyy - 0Z20/600Z/N

NOILLVLINSNOD d04 SNOILVIIlddV

Bale Jo Jajoeleyd pue sbuipjing Jeyjo wol} sjoelaqg

_ "a|gejdasoeun

S| Bale |ejuapIsal U] JuswdojeAsp |eloIaWwIWo))
Buipjing 3soy yum uoipodoid Jo Jno uoIsus)Xg

sme| Bujuueld [Boo| Inoj} pue

WwaysAs Buiuueld ayy asnge 0} PaMOj|B 8q JouU pINoYs
S§9.0/600Z/N

uoneoldde [eulblO 0} 8oUB|qUISSaI OU SJedq
Buipjing 3soy yum Buidesy Jo 1no aq pnom Buuapuay
s|wes Jo Jied uo souejequ|

aul| Buip|ing moj|o} Jou saoQ

Buip|ing auy jJo aoueseadde uo pedwi onewelq
Buipjing [euibuo sajeuUIWOpP UOISUBIX]

ue|d [eo07 uojdweyuoN Jo gLH Adljod 0} Aesjuo)
9|gejdesoeun s| pasnes UIp pue 1snp ‘9sIoN

sueld Y)im aulf ul Jou pue pazisiano ale syiom Buipjing
Ayejes ueuysepad 0] plezey pue ssaooe

40 J4o Bunjoo|q o} 108fqo pue Buppied Jed uo oedw)

AA A

AAANAANAAANAA A

A




Agenda ltem 1

Da

&

f;‘

*’f«;ﬂ

HMO
UGH C N C

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27" October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
APP: N/2009/0028LB Proposed demolition of Infirmary building

and proposed alterations and extension to
remaining buildings, Former St Edmunds
Hospital Site, Wellingborough Road (Listed
Building Consent Application)

WARD: St Crispins

APPLICANT: Mr J Sehmi, Rochmills

AGENT: Mr R Colson, Bidwells

REFERRED BY: Head of Planning

REASON: Related to WNDC Consultation on Major

Development

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION
1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 APPROVAL subject to:
e The conditions set out in section 6 below; and
e The completion of a S106 agreement to the satisfaction of the
Borough Council in respect of the associated planning
permission and that this planning permission has been issued;

And for the following reason:

The proposal would ensure the redevelopment of this prominent, semi-
derelict site which would enhance the character of the area and assist
in the regeneration of the town overall. The proposal would also ensure
the retention of the majority of the listed buildings on the site that are
an important part of the town’s heritage in accordance with Policy 26 of
the Regional Plan and the aims and objectives of PPG15.



2,

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

THE PROPOSAL

The proposal entails the elements:

e change of use of the original workhouse building to offices,
together with various extensions to this building;

e demolition of the existing infirmary building and construction of a
retirement village in its place;

e change of use of the former nurses home to Vvisitors
accommodation in connection with the critical care unit;

e change of use of the former school and extensions to form a
critical care unit; and

e erection of a new three storey building on a vacant part of the
site to provide retail at the ground floor and flats above.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site consists of the former St Edmunds hospital site, originally the
Northampton Workhouse, which was constructed in 1837 and added to
periodically since then, until closing in 1998. Since then the buildings
have been empty and have fallen into a state of disrepair.

The site is in a prominent location on the Wellingborough Road, which
is @ major gateway to the town centre.

APPRAISAL

This application for listed building consent was considered by the
Planning Committee in June 2009, when it was resolved to approve the
application subject to a Section 106 agreement in respect of the
planning application for the same development, which is under
consideration by WNDC, being to satisfaction of the Borough Council.

The Section 106 agreement is now nearing completion, a key element
of which is control of the phasing of development to ensure that the
curtilage listed buildings are refurbished before the infirmary building is
demolished.

In order to accommodate the proposed phasing, the conditions to be
attached to the listed building consent would have to be revised, to
refer to each phase of the development rather than the development as
a whole. This revision would enable phase 1 to be commenced prior to
the submission of details in respect of phase 2, thereby facilitating a
quicker start to development on this key site whilst securing the
conservation of the heritage assets within the site.

The conditions as set out below differ from those previously approved
only in respect to the revised phasing.

The previous Committee report, which sets out the wider spatial
planning issues and policy is attached for reference (at Appendix A).



CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons it is recommended that listed building
consent for the demolition of the infirmary building, and the other works
proposed in the listed building application, is granted, but that this
decision is not issued until the S106 agreement in respect of the
associated planning permission has been completed to the satisfaction
of the Borough Council, and the permission has been issued. In this
way it will be possible for the Council to retain control over the timing of
the demolition of the building in the interest of securing the
conservation of the heritage assets within the site.

CONDITIONS

(1) The works hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the end of
three years from the date of this consent.

Reason: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

(2) The demolition hereby permitted shall not be undertaken before a
contract for the carrying out of the works of redevelopment of the site
has been made and full planning permission has been granted for the
redevelopment for which the contract provides.

Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the area in accordance with
the requirements of Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 — Planning and
The Historic Environment

(3) Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition hereby
granted consent, details of a programme of building recording and
analysis by a person or body first agreed to by the Local Planning
Authority shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the approved programme of building
recording and analysis shall be fully implemented prior to any works of
demolition taking place.

Reason: The mitigate the substantial loss of buildings that are defined
as making a positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area in accordance with Planning Policy Guidance
Note 15 — Planning and The Historic Environment

(4) Prior to work commencing on each phase of the development
pursuant to this permission a detailed schedule of works to be
undertaken to each of the listed buildings shall be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule of
repairs shall show in detail the nature, scope, materials, methodology
and approach to those works, including drawings where necessary.
The timetable shall thereafter take place in full accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Buildings
in accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the
Historic Environment.



(5) Prior to work commencing on each phase of the development, full
details of replacement fittings including doors, windows, stairways, and
cornices at a scale of 1:10 shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be fully
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Buildings
in accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the
Historic Environment.

(6) Details and/or samples of all proposed external facing materials
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Building
in accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the
Historic Environment.

(7) Prior to work commencing on each phase of the development full
details of the method of the treatment of the external boundaries of the
site together with boundaries to the individual elements within the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and thereafter implemented according to the approved
details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the setting of the Listed Buildings
in accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the
Historic Environment.

(8) No development shall take place until a landscaping scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the setting of the Listed Buildings
in accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the
Historic Environment.

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

7.1 None

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1  Planning application file N/2009/0028

9. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

9.1 In reaching the attached recommendations regard has been given to
securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: Date:

Author: Andrew Holden 08/10/09

Development Control Manager: Gareth Jones 12/10/09




Appendix A

&

f;‘

&"’
*{*ﬂ
Sulcn CounTiy

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 18" June 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
APP: N/2009/0028LB Proposed demolition of Infirmary building

and proposed alterations and extension to
remaining buildings, Former St Edmunds
Hospital Site, Wellingborough Road (Listed
Building Consent Application)

WARD: St Crispins

APPLICANT: Mr J Sehmi, Rochmills

AGENT: Mr R Colson, Bidwells

REFFERED BY: Head of Planning

REASON: Related to WNDC Consultation on Major

Development

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION
1 RECOMMENDATION

1.2  Resolution to approve for the following reason and subject to the
following conditions -

1.3  The proposal would ensure the redevelopment of this prominent, semi-
derelict site which would enhance the character of the area and assist
in the regeneration of the town overall. The proposal would also ensure
the retention of the maijority of the listed buildings on the site which are
an important part of the town’s heritage.

2 THE PROPOSAL

2.2  The proposal entails the change of use of the original workhouse
building to offices, together with various extensions to this building,
demolition of the existing infirmary building and construction of a
retirement village in its place, change of use of the former nurses home



to visitors accommodation in connection with the critical care unit,
change of use of the former school and extensions to form a critical
care unit and erection of a new three storey building on a vacant part of
the site to provide retail at the ground floor and flats above.

3 SITE DESCRIPTION

3.3

3.4

The site consists of the former St Edmunds hospital site, originally the
Northampton Workhouse, which was constructed in 1837 and added to
continually since then, until closing in 1998. Since then the buildings
have been empty and have been allowed to fall into disrepair.

The site is in a prominent location on the Wellingborough Road which
is a major gateway to the town centre.

4 PLANNING HISTORY

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The following applications are considered the most relevant -

N/2002/1414 - Redevelopment of site including new offices,
restaurant, apartments and community centre Approved 04-02-2004

N/2002/1604 Redevelopment of site including demolition of some
disused buildings and retain & improve the old workhouse building
Approved 25-03-2004.

WN/2006/0018 Change of use of existing hospital buildings to
residential and erection of new residential units Withdrawn 12-12-
2006.

N/2005/1508 Extension of gatehouse, removing toilet from the side
and building it at the back Approved 23-03-2006

N/2009/0051 - WNDC Consultation - Mixed use development
comprising the development of a retirement village and ancillary
facilities, following the demolition of former Infirmary building;
Development of mixed use building comprising A1 (Retail), A2
(Financial & Professional Services) and A3 (Restaurant & Café) at
ground floor, with 6 apartments at first floor; Conversion of the former
St Edmunds Hospital buildings to comprise B1 (Office) use, conversion
and extension to comprise specialist care facility and visitor
accommodation. - To be considered as separate item on this agenda.

5 PLANNING POLICY

5.1

Section 38(6) of Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan and unless material consideration indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises the Regional
Spatial Strategy (RSS), the Northamptonshire County Structure Plan
and the Northampton Local Plan.



5.2
5.1

5.2

National Policies:
Planning Policy Statement 1 — Delivering Sustainable Development

Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 — Planning and The Historic
Environment

6 CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Estates and Valuation Services - Without a robust appraisal confirming
the scheme only becomes viable if consent to demolish the infirmary is
given the application for permission to demolish should be refused. If
permission is given to demolish on the conclusions of the CBRE
appraisal it will result in a further application to demolish more of the
retained buildings until a viable scheme arises.

Conservation Officer - There are significant concerns regarding the St
Edmunds site which has been vacant and derelict for nearly 10 years
and has had significant issues relating to vandalism and anti-social
behaviour. The site has been poorly managed by the current owners
and this has contributed significantly to these problems.

The current planning and Listed Building consent applications clearly
do not follow the original Northampton Borough Council Planning Brief
of 1999 by not retaining all five buildings ‘critical to the special interest
of the site’.

The conclusions of the financial appraisal exercise undertaken by the
applicants indicate that the scheme would not be financially viable with
the retention of the Infirmary building. An independent financial
appraisal of the scheme in the current market (reflecting the recent
international financial problems) is that the scheme would not be viable
even with the loss of the Infirmary.

If the Listed Building consent application is refused on the basis of non-
viability of the scheme there are a limited number of options available.
The owner may choose to Land Bank the site pending improvement to
the current economic climate leaving the buildings vulnerable to further
deterioration for another extended period of time or a new application
with denser development requirements could be submitted which may
have a significantly more detrimental effect on the setting of the listed
buildings.

The St Edmunds site is now in a perilous state and action is required to
ensure the buildings on site do not deteriorate further. The current
application is for the comprehensive re-development of the entire site
with a new use found for the listed workhouse and three of the four
curtilage buildings (school house, nurses accommodation and gate
house). The historic significance of the infirmary building has been
established and its potential loss should be considered a last resort to
safeguard the long term future of the remaining buildings.



6.7

It should be made clear that if consent is forthcoming for the demolition
of this curtilage listed building that it is regarded as part of the scheme
as a whole and should not be seen as a precedent for future schemes
involving further demolition. A robust phasing strategy will therefore
need to be drafted and agreed to, ensuring that the infirmary building is
not demolished until a significant commitment has been made to
restoration and conversion of the remaining buildings on site. The
following phasing is recommended:

e Phase 1. School house, nurses accommodation, retail unit and access
road to Wellingborough Road frontage. No demolition shall take place
during this phase.

e Phase 2 Workhouse building and gatehouse.

e Phase 3 Demolition of Infirmary building and construction of retirement
village.

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

The phasing scheme will need to be the subject of a legal agreement
which should also include the rescinding of the existing listed building
consents.

It will also be important to safeguard against the subsequent dilution of
details and the use of lesser materials by applying appropriate
conditions to any consent.

English Heritage - No need to consult as only consulted on demolition
of Grade II* curtilage buildings. No comment to make in respect of this
proposal.

The Victorian Society - Disappointed to see the proposals entail the
demolition of a curtilage listed building and a significant amount of
large scale new development adjacent to and attached to other listed
and curtilage listed structures. Proposals should retain those listed
buildings and their settings, however we fear that the current proposals
fail to achieve those aims. Appears that the reason for the demolitions
is the high cost of restoring the buildings which are in a poor state of
repair. This is due to neglect by the developers and premature
demolitions. Demolition of the infirmary must be rigorously justified and
it must be demonstrated that all alternatives have been considered and
discounted. With regard to the school house, concerned about the
impact of extensions to the west of the building.

One letter received from a neighbouring occupier at 89 Talbot Road
expressing support for the development and stating that historic
buildings should be preserved but not at the expense of progress.



7 APPRAISAL

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The main issues to consider in this case are the impact of the
proposals on the character and setting of the listed buildings, in
particular whether the demolition of the curtilage listed infirmary
building is justified in respect of the viability of the site and therefore
necessary in order to secure the future viability of the remaining
buildings (i.e. to act as “enabling development”)

The proposal entails the demolition of the former infirmary building, the
conversion of the original workhouse building to office use, the
conversion and alterations and extensions to the former school building
to provide a specialist care facility.

Impact on the Listed Buildings.

Of key importance in considering this application is the impact of the
proposal on the listed buildings, including the main workhouse building,
former nurses home and school building. Also proposed is the
demolition of the former infirmary building.

Main Workhouse Building

The proposal includes the conversion of the main workhouse building
to offices. This involves various internal alterations which in general
restore the building to something closer to its original condition and are
considered to be broadly sympathetic. A full schedule of works will
nevertheless be necessary to ensure the suitability of these alterations.

Also proposed is a canopy to the existing internal courtyard, which
would not have been an original feature. However, this is considered to
be relatively sympathetic to the building and it is recognised that this is
necessary to allow circulation to the new units.

Also proposed is a three storey extension. This would replicate an
existing feature at the opposite end of the building and whilst this would
differ from the historical element in this position this is considered to be
acceptable. Again a schedule of materials will be necessary.

School Building

The front fagade of the school building would be largely restored to its
original state but a single storey glazed extension would be added in
the location of the previous much larger extension. This would
potentially conceal the worst of the damage caused to the front of the
building and could if required be removed at a future date enabling full
restoration of the front elevation of the building. The front elevation
retains the original windows other than in the central section and would
be restored to its original appearance other than the extension as
discussed above.



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

To the rear of the school building a three storey extension is proposed
which would enable sufficient depth to be available to provide the
required facilities, this not being available in the very narrow building as
it exists. The school building has original windows to the front elevation
but not to the rear where all have been replaced with UPVC and
additionally the rear of the building has been unsympathetically
extended. It is considered, therefore, that the proposed extensions
would not be damaging to the character of the listed building.

Demolition of Infirmary Building

The infirmary building is at present in a dilapidated state and does not
retain its original windows or any significant original features other than
the shell of the building. The building would in any event have been
built with little in the way of ornamentation due to the requirement for a
functional building.

In considering whether the demolition of the infirmary is acceptable it is
necessary to consider this in the context of “Enabling Development”

The English Heritage Guidance on Enabling Development sets out that
enabling development is the minimum necessary to secure the future of
a place which minimises harm to other public interests.

The ‘enabling’ development has to be the minimum amount to make
the scheme viable. In this case the appraisal assesses various uses
for the infirmary building and concludes that with its retention within the
scheme, an overall profit of 2.09% on cost would be realised — which is
not viable.

The developer profit for the proposed scheme (demolition of the
infirmary and erection of retirement village) would, on the developers
figures, realise a profit of 12.78% which is marginally viable. On this
basis the current proposal would appear to be the minimum amount of
development to make the scheme viable and justify the demolition of
the infirmary.

To assess the robustness of this argument both NBC and WNDC have
commissioned assessments to determine the DTZ Financial Appraisal
which seeks to demonstrate the validity of this argument.

WNDC commissioned a independent assessment of the financial
appraisal from CBRE. CBRE’s report raised a number of issues. It
concluded that the majority of the assumptions applied and the method
in which they were carried out by DTZ were correct. They felt that the
yields used on the care home and retirement village do seem
optimistic.

CBRE'’s appraisal, which uses revised yields concludes that the
proposed scheme would make a negative profit of 0.71% ie a loss and
is therefore unviable in the current market. This does change the



717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

enabling development argument as the amount of enabling
development is below the minimum needed to ensure viability, which
means that the applicant could propose additional development to
make the scheme viable.

Comments from NBC’s estates and valuation service in regard to the
CBRE report are that without a robust appraisal confirming the scheme
only becomes viable if consent to demolish the infirmary is given, the
application for permission to demolish should be refused.

However, if the application is to be refused on this basis, the
consequences of this must be taken into account. If the site is not
developed in the near future the buidlings will continue to fall into
disrepair, making it less likely in the future that they will be able to be
restored economiocally.

The developer has stated an intention to retain the finished scheme
and is therefore more concerned about the long term profitability of the
scheme. Furthermore, the development will be to subject to a s.106
agreement to secure the phasing of the site to ensure that the enabling
development (the retirement village in place of the infirmary) is only
secured once the works to the listed buildings have been completed.

It is considered, therefore, that it may be preferable to agree to the loss
of this one building, which as discussed is in the worst condition of all
of the buildings on the site.

Crucial within this is the need for WNDC to agree with the developer
within which phase the demolition of the infirmary would take place.
Whilst it would appear logical for this to be the final phase before
construction commences on the retirement village, the developers have
stated that they may wish to use materials from this building in
restoring the remaining buildings. It is not considered, however, that the
bulk of the features within the infirmary building could in fact be used
elsewhere on the site due to the differing age and design of the other
buildings.

Comments from the Council’s Conservation Officer indicate a concern
that the demolition of the listed building should not be permitted if
viability cannot be shown. However, it is also recognised by the
Conservation Officer that the site is in a perilous state and that it may
be necessary to accept the loss of one building to enable the others to
be saved. On this basis it is considered that even if viability is not
shown, the result of a refusal on this basis would be that either the site
would be left and would deteriorate further or a further application
would be made to justify the viability argument which would inevitably
mean more development on the site. It is considered, therefore, that
the viability argument can be set aside to some extent in the interests
of saving as many of the buildings as possible.

Comments from the Conservation Officer propose an alternative



phasing strategy, which would entail the first phase of the development
being the development of the school house and the retail units and flats
on the western side of the site. This would enable the future of the
school building to be secured and to be financed by the retail / flat unit,
effectively as an independent development and would address any
concern that the schoolhouse may also be considered for demolition in
the future.

7.24 Itis recommended, therefore, that it is put to WNDC by means of the
formal response to the consultation on the planning application which
forms a separate item on this agenda, that the phasing strategy should
be revised in this way. In the event that WNDC are not agreeable to
this it would be possible to attach a separate legal agreement to the
listed building consent setting out separately the Borough Council’s
requirements.

7.25 Concern has been raised by the Conservation Officer that the
application may need to be referred to the Secretary of State as it
involves the demolition of a listed building. However, Circular 01/2001
states that this is only required in respect of a principal building and
whilst the circular does not define a principle building it is clear from
PPG15 that this refers to the building which is listed in its own right and
not any curtilage buildings. The application does not, therefore, need to
be referred.

8 RECOMMENDATION / CONDITIONS

8.1 Itis recommended that listed building consent for the demolition of the
infirmary building, and the other works proposed in the listed building
application, is granted, but that this decision is not issued until the S106
agreement in respect of the associated planning permission has been
prepared to the satisfaction of the Borough Council and signed, and the
permission has been issued. In this way it will be possible for the
Borough Council to retain control over the demolition of the building. In
the event that WNDC are not prepared to consider the inclusion of the
revised phasing strategy in their Section 106 agreement, it is
recommended that a separate Section 106 agreement is prepared in
respect of the Listed Building Application Only.

(1) The works hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the end of three
years from the date of this consent.

Reason: In order to comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

(2) The demolition hereby permitted shall not be undertaken before a contract
for the carrying out of the works of redevelopment of the site has been made
and full planning permission has been granted for the redevelopment for
which the contract provides.



Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the area in accordance with the
requirements of Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 — Planning and The
Historic Environment

(3) Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition hereby granted
consent, details of a programme of building recording and analysis by a
person or body first agreed to by the Local Planning Authority shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter, the approved programme of building recording and analysis shall
be fully implemented prior to any works of demolition taking place.

Reason: The mitigate the substantial loss of buildings that are defined as
making a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area in accordance with Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 —
Planning and The Historic Environment

(4) Prior to work commencing on site pursuant to this permission a detailed
schedule of works to be undertaken to each of the listed buildings shall be
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
schedule of repairs shall show in detail the nature, scope, materials,
methodology and approach to those works, including drawings where
necessary. The timetable shall thereafter take place in full accordance with
the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Buildings in
accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the Historic
Environment.

(5) Before development commences, full details of replacement fittings
including doors, windows, stairways, and cornices at a scale of 1:10 shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be fully carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Buildings in
accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the Historic
Environment.

(6) Details and/or samples of all proposed external facing materials shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the integrity of the Listed Building in
accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the Historic
Environment.

(7) Prior to the commencement of any works on site full details of the method
of the treatment of the external boundaries of the site together with
boundaries to the individual elements within the site shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter
implemented according to the approved details.



Reason: To ensure the protection of the setting of the Listed Buildings in
accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the Historic
Environment.

(8) No development shall take place until a landscaping scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the protection of the setting of the Listed Buildings in

accordance with the advice contained in PPG15 Planning and the Historic
Environment.

9 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

9.1  None

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

10.1  Planning application file N/2009/0028

11. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

11.1 In reaching the attached recommendations regard has been given to

securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: Date:

Author: Andrew Holden 05.06.2009

Development Control Manager: June Kelly 05.06.2009




St Edmunds Hospital

from the 2008 Ordnance 5 pping with the permizzion of the
I} f Her Majesty's Stationenr Office. @ Crown Copyright Unauthorized reproduction
right and may | i fwil i i




Agendatte
Item No.
gﬁ p= ”’
‘i{aﬂ A
THAMP O
0 UGH COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27" October 2009
DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
APP: N/2009/0606 Retrospective subdivision of industrial unit

and part use as builders merchants (Sui
Generis). External changes including altering
and creating openings and erection of 2.4m
high fence around yard at Unit 5, Minton
Business Centre, Main Road, Far Cotton.

WARD: Delapre

APPLICANT: Keystone Roofing Supplies Ltd

AGENT: Architectural Services

REFERRED BY: Head of Planning

REASON: Applicant is a relative of an NBC employee

(section 2.1.4 of the Constitution)

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION/ CONSULTATION BY:

1.

1.1

2.1

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL for the following reason:

The change of use to builder's merchants and external changes to the
building and forecourt are acceptable by virtue of maintaining the
business characteristics of Minton Business Centre, utilising suitable
highway access and by enhancing the appearance of the building and
site. For these reasons the changes accord with saved Policies B2,
B3, B14 and E20 of the Northampton Local Plan and no other material
considerations indicate otherwise.

THE PROPOSAL
The application is to subdivide an approximately 1,500 square metre

industrial unit into two spaces, one of which is proposed to be a
builder's merchants (sui generis use) covering a footprint of 935 square

10b



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

41

5.1

5.2

5.3

metres with the creation of a 240 square metre first floor mezzanine
office space. This leaves the second unit from the subdivision as a 535
square metre unit. This smaller unit is not proposed to be changed
from its existing industrial uses.

The larger unit comes with a forecourt area which is fenced with 2.4
metre palisade metal railings creating an external outside storage
space measuring approximately 900 square metres.

It is also proposed to re-clad the walls of the building with aluminium
panels resulting in changes to windows and doors and other openings
(these works are now largely complete). The existing lighting on site is
not proposed to be changed.

SITE DESCRIPTION

Minton Business Centre was previously the site of tractor/ digger cab
manufacture and performed a range of business uses around this core
activity. With the closure of these operations the buildings are being
remarketed for business uses.

The site is 1km southwest of the centre of Northampton on an
established industrial area close to Far Cotton and directly south of the
Grand Union Canal. The estate is accessed from a roundabout on
Towcester Road. The surrounding area is entirely commercial with a
wide range of business land uses taking place.

PLANNING HISTORY

A long history of planning consents dating from the 1950s for body
works factory activities on the wider site. More recently consent for this
building in 1970/71, extensions in 1980/90s and in 2005 an application
for flood defences.

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:
PPS1 — Delivering Sustainable Development
PPG4 — Industrial, commercial development and small firms

East Midlands Regional Plan 2009
Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design



54

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

Encourages highway access and parking that improves both safety and
the quality of public space, whilst seeking design that reduces crime
and the fear of crime.

Northampton Borough Local Plan

E20 — New Development

B2 — Existing business areas

B3 — Business development

B14 — Development for non-business uses
T14 — Rail corridor safeguard

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Planning out Crime in Northamptonshire SPG 2004

CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Internal

Access Officer — Level access required, doors will need to meet DDA
standard

Public Protection — No comments to make.
External

County Highways — storage of building materials shall not impinge on
car parking areas.

Neighbours

No representations made.
APPRAISAL
Principle of change of use

The proposals include part of the building being changed from B-class
uses to a sui generis use, a builder's merchants. This type of use is
well-suited to a industrial estate where the kind of noise and vehicle
activity typical of builder's yards can be kept away from residential
neighbours and the road infrastructure is designed to handle heavy
vehicles.

Nonetheless, saved Local Plan Policy B14 seeks to protect industrial
areas from the loss of business class uses unless there would be a
significant benefit to the local community and substantial employment
opportunities. It is considered in this case that the use closely reflects
B-class activity and would employ similar numbers to the existing
permitted uses. The benefit of keeping builder’s yards in areas remote
from housing is also considered to weigh in favour of the proposals.



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

8.1

In summary, the change of use element of the proposals maintains the
business characteristics of Minton Business Centre, would not reduce
local employment opportunities and is sustainably located away from
sensitive neighbours such as housing.

Parking and access

As mentioned above, the road infrastructure into Minton Business
Centre is adequate to handle HGVs and business traffic. NCC as
Highway Authority does not raise objections to the suitability of the
access, but do have concerns about car parking. The site is
considered highly accessible, in a relatively sustainable location and
will not result in highway safety problems.

A protected rail corridor passes directly by the entrance of the site and
down the south side of the building. This close relationship has existed
for decades and the proposals go no further than the existing lawful
business activities already occurring on the land. In this respect, the
change of use of the site is no more harmful to the protected rail
corridor than the existing situation.

NCC’s concern regarding the internal parking spaces being covered by
stored materials or other obstructions is considered a valid one and it is
recommended that a planning condition is applied to keep these
available at all times for staff and visitor’'s cars.

Design and appearance

The former appearance of the site has been updated by works that
involve grey aluminium cladding to the upper part of the building, blue
powder coated frame windows (included at first floor height) and 2.4m
metal palisade fencing around the forecourt.

All of the aforementioned design changes are considered an
improvement on the original form and layout and give a boost to a tired
and aged area of this industrial estate. On this basis the proposals
accord with saved Policy E20 of the Local Plan.

CONCLUSION

The principle of losing business uses to a builder's merchants is
considered acceptable in terms of saved Policy B14 by virtue of
retaining employment and business activity on site in a location that is
clearly preferable for such uses. The access arrangements are
acceptable and providing off street parking is suitably maintained there
are no objections to the layout proposed. The fencing and building
improvements enhance the building and revitalise the appearance of
the area.



For all these reasons the proposal is considered to accord with the
policies of the Development Plan and no other material considerations
indicate otherwise.

9. CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

2. The car parking spaces shall at all times be reserved for the parking
of vehicles by staff and visitors and there shall be no storage of
goods, materials, refuse, pallets or skips thereon.

Reason: To ensure that adequate parking facilities are maintained
in accordance with PPG 13 Transport.

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
None

12. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN
12.1 In reaching the above recommendations, regard has been given to

securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: Date:
Author: Richard Boyt 8/10/09
Development Control Manager Gareth Jones 12/10/09
Agreed:







Agenda ltem 1

DC

&

f;‘

&"’
Q
BOROUGH COUNCIL

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27" October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
N/2009/0610 - Full: Proposed erection of 4 no. detached

dwellings with associated garages, access
and parking at Land to rear of 76 Church

Way.
WARD: Weston
APPLICANT: Individual Homes
AGENT: None
REFERRED BY: Head of Planning
REASON: Previous application on this site called in by

Councillor Hadland.

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION:

1.

1.1

2.1

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subject to the following conditions and for the following
reason:

The proposed development would have no undue detrimental impact
upon the visual amenity of the locality, the residential amenity of
nearby occupiers or highways safety and therefore accords with
policies E20, H6 & H10 of the Northampton Local Plan and Planning
Policy Statement 3 Housing.

THE PROPOSAL

The proposal entails the construction of four dwellings (2 x one and a
half storey and 2 x two and a half storey) on a large backland site to
the rear of no. 76 Churchway; a detached two storey house. It is
proposed to retain no. 76. Access is proposed to the south of the
existing house from Churchway. This application is a revision of a
previous approval on this site for three dwellings, using the same



3.1

41

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

access and follows the withdrawal of a proposal for five dwellings.
SITE DESCRIPTION

The site comprises all of the land at no. 76 Church Way, covering an
area of 0.31 hectares. The site slopes significantly towards the rear
and includes a number of protected trees as well as a large pond. The
proposed development area is concentrated to the rear of the existing
house, which is to be retained.

PLANNING HISTORY

The erection of three houses on substantially the same site was
approved on November 15th 2004 under reference N/2004/1140. This
used the same means of access as the current proposal.

An application for the erection of five dwellings, made under reference
N/2008/1228 was withdrawn on January 21 2009.

An application for four dwellings was made under reference
N/2009/0093 and was withdrawn on August 14™ 2009.

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development
PPS3 Housing

PPG13 Transport

East Midlands Regional Plan

Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design

Encourages highway access and parking that improves both safety and
the quality of public space, whilst seeking design that reduces crime
and the fear of crime.

Northampton Borough Local Plan

H6 — Other housing development within primarily residential area
E20 - New development

E40 - Crime and Vandalism

Other Policy Considerations



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG);
Parking
Planning Out Crime

CONSULTATIONS

County Highways: Initial Comments: Having studied the documents
relating to this application; in particular the Design & Access
Statement, | would only reiterate my previous comment relating to this
site; this being that it be conditioned on any permission given that: The
turning head in front of No 76 be kept clear at all times and not be used
as a parking space and to be maintained as a turning head to remove
the possibility of vehicles reversing out on to the public highway.

County Highways: Further Comments Following Committee Request:
| would confirm that although the driveway is somewhat narrow in
places it is still of a sufficient width to be acceptable. There is adequate
visibility at the entrance to the development. The turning head is
sufficient. The turning head at the front of No 76 is to be tied down by
condition as previously discussed and agreed. The parking provision is
sufficient.

It would not be possible to refuse and sustain a refusal for this
application on highway grounds. There is already permission given for
three dwellings on this site, if the Committee wish to refuse this
application on any other grounds than highway matters that would have
to be their decision.

Arboricultural Officer: There are numerous trees at the site including
trees within TPO No.11. Trees to the Western edge of the site have
added importance as a screen to the proposed development and as
such any removal will require replacement plantings. The proposed
drive | believe is within the Root Protection Areas (RPA) of trees within
Group 2 of the above TPO and will require specialist no-dig design.
Plot A is also within the RPA of protected trees and would require
specialist foundations and ground protection to facilitate construction
without compacting the underlying rooting area.

Public Protection: Initial Comments: The land should be investigated
for prior contaminative uses and more particularly possible excessive
levels of natural Arsenic. | attach some guidance notes for information.
| would therefore recommend that if you are minded to recommend
approval it should be subject to the conditions on the attached
schedule. Please note that with effect from 6 April 2008, a Site Waste
Management Plan (SWMP) must be produced for all construction
projects worth over £300,000. A SWMP records the amount and type
of waste produced on a construction site and how it will be reused,
recycled or disposed.

Public Protection: Further Comments re. Disturbance From Vehicle
Noise Following Committee Request: obviously there will be additional



7.1

noise from passage of vehicles at various times but | would not expect
this to be of any real significance, given ordinary domestic use, and
assuming the main access road is hard surfaced and not gravel.

REPRESENTATIONS

The application was advertised by notification letter and objections
were received from the occupiers of 17, 18, 19 and 20 Favell Way, and
76 and Church Way, making the following points:

We had permission to build at the bottom of our garden (17 Favell
Way), adjacent to the site, still hope to be able to implement these
plans.

Concerned over problems with waterlogging, want to ensure there
is adequate drainage if the plans are passed.

Loss of amenity due to proximity to raised decking area.

Plans indicate obscure glazed windows, will this always be the
case?

Back of our house will be in full view of the ground floor windows of
house C. Decking area will be overlooked by anyone standing on
access road.

Will bring a minimum of four cars, if not 8 or more, as well as
access problems will add to noise and fumes.

Boundary fence is small and affords little protection.

Development is on land covered by a Tree Preservation Order.
Proposed scheme is a cramped and visual obtrusive form of
development, out of keeping with other properties in the locality in
general and visually intrusive.

Development would be out of keeping with this low density
residential area.

Would have a detrimental effect on established character of the
area.

Original application for three houses was a more acceptable
number.

Closeness of access driveway to boundary fences would be a
security and vandalism risk for all adjoining properties. Permanent
stone or brick wall should be provided.

Amount of traffic entering and exiting this driveway onto a bend in
the road should also be a major consideration.

Church Way is used as a rat run for traffic, more and more backland
planning applications are being passed and the volume of traffic is
reaching an unacceptable and dangerous level.

The character of the village is being destroyed.

Considered to be significant over development of a backland site
Would have wholly unacceptable relationship with adjacent property
(78 Church Way, “Lomond”). Outlook over garden, and into rear
windows, resulting in a severe loss of privacy and amenity.

Proposal attempts to shoe-horn four substantial dwellings onto the
site, resulting in over bearing impact on existing properties.



8.1

8.2

8.3
8.4

8.5

8.6

¢ \Vehicles passing along the drive would pass close to the rear
windows of Lomond, this could only be solved by a fence or hedge
which could have an overbearing impact on the property.

e Additional dwellings on a private drive would not be easily
accessible to service vehicles, likely that these would park on the
road causing inconvenience to other road users.

e Length and width of the drive would result in cars meeting on the
drive and having to reverse possibly the length of the drive and
possibly sound their horns which would disturb neighbours.

e Additional visibility splays result in removal of boundary walls which
is characteristic of this part of Church Way.

e Additional activity along access road would increase risk of crime
and vandalism.

e PPS3 encourages the efficient use of land for housing but also
emphasises the need to respect the character and amenity of
existing residential areas.

e There is a wider issue of overdevelopment within Church Way.
Approx 20 houses have been approved or are proposed, with
associated cars etc. Has the planning authority taken on board the
implications on what is a narrow village road being used as a rat
run?

APPRAISAL

The site is designated within the Local Plan as falling within a primarily
residential area. The principle of residential development is therefore
acceptable in this location.

Policy H6 sets out the criteria against which residential development
will be assessed, stating that “within the primarily residential areas
identified on the proposals map, planning permission for residential
development will be granted except where:

A) The development would be at a scale and density which would
be detrimental to the character of the surrounding area or would
result in an over intensive development of the site.

The proposal is for four detached houses within a backland site.

The proposal represents a revision to a previous approval on this site
which proposed three larger houses of a broadly similar style.

There are other examples of ‘backland’ development behind the main
road frontages and it is not considered that the development would be
out of keeping with the character of the area or the wider pattern of
development.

The proposal would result in a density of 12.9 dwellings per hectare,
which is below the national indicative minimum density as set out in
PPS3, but is considered to be an appropriate density given the



8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

character of the area. In light of this, the proposal could not be
considered an overdevelopment of the site.

It is considered that the houses now proposed would be in keeping with
the character of the area being of a similar footprint to many
neighbouring properties and of a style which is considered appropriate
to the area.

Two of the houses (A and B) would have rooms within the roofspace
whilst the two houses (C and D) closest to Church Way would be in
more of a dormer bungalow style, but incorporating full two storey
elements.

Houses C and D would face towards the rear gardens of neighbouring
properties at 18 and 19 Favell Way but would be separated from these
by a distance of 34 and 39m respectively, with the distance to the site
boundaries being 13.5 and 9m respectively. Additionally these two
units have been designed such that the first floor window would be
obscure glazed and serving only bathrooms, with the bedroom
windows facing to the rear. This would, therefore, prevent any
overlooking of these properties. The occupiers of no. 18 Favell Way
have objected due to overlooking of the raised patio area to the rear of
their property, however this would be 13.5m from the facing property at
plot C and it is considered that any overlooking of the patio area from
street level could be overcome by a suitable boundary treatment and
planting.

In respect of the adjacent property at 78 Church Way, the nearest new
property on Plot C would be offset from the rear of this property but
would be within 10m of the boundary with its garden. However,
overlooking would again be prevented by the use of obscure glazing at
first floor level.

The proposal entails the creation of a new means of access adjacent to
the side boundary of no. 78 Church Way (indicated on the submitted
plans as 78A but now re-numbered) and 18 and 19 Favell Way. This is
in common with the previous approval for three houses and it is not
considered that this would result in any additional impact on the
occupiers of this property.

To the north of the site are tennis courts and an area of open space
which would not be adversely affected by the development.

B) The development would not comply with the council's highway
design guide and guide to parking standards.

Members will recall that this application was deferred at the September
22" Committee with a request for further clarification from County
Highways on the following points:

e That the access driveway is of sufficient width throughout its length



8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

to serve the development

e That the junction of the driveway with Church Way is fully
acceptable in terms of highway safety including the visibility splays.

e That the turning head at the end of the proposed drive is sufficient

e That the arrangements re the turning head to the front of no. 76 are
satisfactory

e That the level of parking proposed for each of the houses is
sufficient.

The response from County Highways, as set out above, confirms the
acceptability of the development on all these points.

The means of access to the site is from Church Way, utilising part of
the side garden of no. 76. This entails the removal of the front wall to
the highway and the provision of a side access to the parking area to
the front of no. 76.

The previous approval was for three houses and a garage for the
original house at no. 76. The proposal now entails four houses but no.
76 would not be provided with a garage. However, a garage has
recently been constructed, under a separate permission, to the side of
no. 76. However whilst this would increase the use of the private drive,
comments from County Highways indicate that this is acceptable,
subject to the turning head to the front of no. 76 being kept clear and
not used as a parking space.

The proposal has been amended from the previously withdrawn
application by the inclusion of this turning head within the application
site, which will allow this to be controlled by condition. Following
concern from the owners of no. 76 about this space being used by all
occupiers, clarification has been sought from County Highways who
have confirmed that it need only be kept clear for the occupiers of 76.
This turning space would potentially be available to all, however in
practice it would not be required by the occupiers of the new houses.
The condition controlling this element has been amended from that
proposed at the previous committee meeting to reflect this point.

Parking is provided in the form of a double garage for each of plots A
and B and a single garage for Plots C and D. Additional parking would
be available to the front of all plots.

PPS3 states that on average a maximum ratio of 1.5 parking spaces
per plot should be provided. This maximum would not be exceeded by
the proposal. The site is not well served by public transport and this
level of car parking is therefore considered necessary and appropriate.

Concern was raised under the previous application by one of the



8.21

8.22

9.1

10.

neighbours as to the possibility of dustbins being left at the site
entrance for collection. Consultation with the Councils Waste
Management section indicates that bins would have to be left at the
highway boundary. However, this is in common with all other backland
sites and in the absence of any objection from County Highways it is
not considered that this issue can be regarded as sufficient to warrant
refusal.

C) The development would be piecemeal in character and likely to
prejudice the possible satisfactory development of a larger area.

The development is a comprehensive scheme encompassing the
whole of this garden area and therefore cannot be viewed as being
piecemeal in character.

D) The development would result in the loss of, or the loss of
potential for garaging, parking, social, educational, recreational or
other facilities for which there is a need in the area, or trees or
land of significant amenity value.

The site includes a number of trees which are protected by a tree
preservation order and includes building within the root protection area
of these trees. Comments from the Arboricultural Officer suggest that
full details of the method of construction should be provided and
conditions to this effect are proposed.

CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposal represents only a moderate increase
over and above the number of dwellings previously approved and given
that it has been designed to minimise the impact on adjoining
occupiers, it is considered that no undue adverse impact would result
either on adjoining occupiers, as a result of increased highway
congestion or due to any impact on the protected trees.

CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

Details and/or samples of all proposed external facing materials shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the
development will harmonise with its surroundings in accordance with
Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

Full details of the proposed surface treatment of all roads, access and



parking areas, footpaths and private drives including their gradients
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of construction work on site.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason - To secure a satisfactory standard of development in
accordance with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme
of hard and soft landscaping for the site. The scheme shall include
indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land and details
of any to be retained. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved plans prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings
hereby approved.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to secure a satisfactory
standard of development in accordance with Policy E20 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

Full details of the driveway construction within the root protection area
of adjacent protected trees shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
any work on site. The details submitted shall include a fit-for-purpose
specialist no-dig construction incorporating a 3-dimensional cellular
confinement system to negate soil compaction and allow moisture
throughput. The driveway in this area shall thereafter be constructed in
full accordance with the submitted details.

Reason - In order to ensure adequate protection of existing trees on
the site in the interests of achieving a satisfactory standard of
development and maintaining the amenity of the locality in accordance
with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

Full details of root protection measures during construction, including
protective fencing for during development, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of any work on site and the development shall
thereafter be carried out in full accordance with the approved details.
The submitted details shall specify how the underlying rooting area is
to be protected and shall include details of specialist foundations and
ground protection measures to facilitate construction within the Root
Protection Areas. During the period on construction within the fenced
protection area(s) no development works shall take place on, over or
under the ground, no vehicles shall be driven, nor plant sited, no
materials nor waste shall be deposited, no bonfires shall be lit nor the
ground level altered during the periods of development.

Reason - In order to ensure adequate protection of existing trees on
the site in the interests of achieving a satisfactory standard of
development and maintaining the amenity of the locality in accordance
with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.



10.

11.

Prior to the commencement of construction works on site, details of the
existing and proposed ground levels and finished floor levels of the
development in relation to neighbouring properties shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter
the development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason -In the interests of residential and visual amenity in
accordance with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

The turning head to the front of No 76 Church Way as shown on the
approved plan (reference AC1) shall be maintained for the use of all
future occupiers of 76 Church Way, for so long as the development
hereby approved remains in existence, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the local planning authority. Reason - To ensure that the
proposed development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic or
conditions of highway safety in accordance with Policy E20 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the
junction of the new access and the existing highway shall be laid out in
accordance with the approved details thereof as set out on drawing ref.
AC1 and maintained for so long as the development hereby approved
remains in existence.

Reason - To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice
the free flow of traffic or conditions of highway safety in accordance
with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

The first floor windows in the south-eastern elevations of units C and D
shall be glazed with obscured glass and shall be of fixed type before
the development hereby permitted is first occupied and thereafter
retained in that form at all times.

Reason - To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining properties in
accordance with Policy H6 of the Northampton Local Plan.

No development shall take place until a desktop study in respect of
possible contaminants within the site is completed and a site
investigation has been designed. The scope and methodology of the
desk top study and the site investigation report shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site
investigation and appropriate risk assessments shall be carried out and
the results shall be used to produce a method statement for the
necessary remedial works (and a phasing programme), which shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
All remedial works shall be fully implemented in accordance with the
approved method statement and phasing programme. Confirmation of
the full implementation of the scheme and validation report(s) shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 2 weeks of completion
(or within 2 weeks of completion of each respective phase).

Reason To ensure the effective investigation and remediation of
contaminated land sites and in the interests of health and safety and
the quality of the environment.



12

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out
the approved development that was not previously identified it must be
reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance
with the requirements of Condition 11, and where remediation is
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with
the requirements of Condition 11, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of
the Local Planning Authority in accordance with Condition 11.

Reason: To ensure the effective investigation and remediation of
contaminated land sites and in the interests of health and safety and
the quality of the environment in accordance with the advice contained
in PPS23 Planning and Pollution Control.

13.  Full details of the method of the treatment of the external boundaries of
the site together with individual plot boundaries shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, implemented
prior to the occupation of the buildings hereby permitted and retained
thereafter.

Reason -To ensure that the boundaries of the site are properly treated
so as to secure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance
with Policy E20 of the Northampton Local Plan.

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

11.1 None.

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS

12.1  Application file N/2009/0610

13. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

13.1 In reaching the attached recommendations regard has been given to
securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: Date:

Author: Andrew Holden 08/10/09

Development Control Manager: Gareth Jones 09/10/09




Tile
=2 | Building Plot Rear of 76 Church Way
Produced from the 'Z'IZIJ-Q Ordnance Sulvey Mapping with i‘helpeﬂmssmn of the

. mi  Planning
EU%ELLIHA?}]F;L(E& mii  Location Plan Contraller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office, @ Crown Copyright Unauthorised reproduction
- = infriinges Crowun Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence number 100019855




Agenda ltem 10d

f;‘

 Pamar
B a0

O C

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27 October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration

HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge

APP: N/2009/0644 First floor extension above existing annex,
21 Huntsmead

WARD: Ecton Brook

APPLICANT: Mr. Taylor

AGENT: Mr. T. Dobraszczyk

REFERRED BY: Clir. Jamie Lane

REASON: Concerns re overbearing, overshadowing and lack
of privacy

DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION:

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL with conditions for the following reason:

By reason of its siting, scale and relation with surrounding development, the
impact of the proposed development on the character of the original building,
street scene and residential amenity is considered acceptable and in
accordance with Policies E20 and H18 of the Northampton Local Plan.

THE PROPOSAL

The original proposal was for a first floor extension over both an existing
ground floor annex and the garage. However, following the submission of
amended plans, permission is now sought for a first floor extension over the
granny annex only, raising the roof height by 1.75m to form a playroom and
bathroom. The design incorporates a front dormer with pitched roof.

SITE DESCRIPTION

21 Huntsmead is a 1980’s detached dwelling located in a cul-de-sac of similar
dwellings. The property has a detached garage/granny annex which is set at



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

right angles to the main house. The land inclines to the rear (south).
PLANNING HISTORY

89/0882 — granny annex - approved

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development
Plan unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The current
Development Plan comprises of the East Midlands Regional Plan, the saved
policies of the Northamptonshire County Structure Plan and Northampton
Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:
Planning Policy Statement 1 — Delivering Sustainable Development

East Midlands Regional Plan 2009

Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design

Encourages highway access and parking that improves both safety and the
quality of public space, whilst seeking design that reduces crime and the fear
of crime.

Northampton Borough Local Plan
E20 — New Development
H18 - Extensions

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Residential Extensions Design Guide

CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

Councillors

ClIrs. Jamie Lane, Keith Davis and Phil Larratt were consulted. Clir Lane has
‘called-in’ the application to be determined by the Planning Committee due to
concerns re overbearing, overshadowing and lack of privacy

Neighbours
Notification letters sent to 15 & 16 Botmead Road and 18, 19, 20 and 22

Huntsmead. Representations (objections) on the amended plans were
received from 16, 19, 22 Huntsmead, 15, 16 Botmead, and Planning
Consultants Brian Barber Associates on behalf of the occupiers of 16
Botmead. The objections can be summarised as follows:

e Development not in-keeping with existing house or the area;

e Increased nuisance caused by more traffic and parked cars;

e Possible use as a separate dwelling unit; and

e Overlooking, overshadowing, overbearing and loss of light issues.



7. APPRAISAL

7.1 In assessing this application with regard to the two applicable Local Plan
policies E20 and H18, the principle planning considerations are the impact of
the proposed development on the original dwelling and streetscene, and its
impact on the amenities of adjacent neighbours.

Design and Appearance

7.2 Huntsmead is a cul-de-sac characterised by detached dwellings with
spacious gardens. Angled building lines give a non-uniform layout to the
streetscene and there are a variety of house styles. In assessing the impact
of the proposal on the streetscene, it is noted that the proposal would not
increase the footprint of the building, as it would sit above the part of the
existing built form. The design of the proposal with the pitched roof front
dormer is not considered to be significantly detrimental to the overall
streetscene, and it is considered that the size of the extension (over a little
over half of the existing outbuilding) does not represent a particularly
obtrusive feature in the streetscene, given also that it would be located
partially behind the side wall of the existing house when viewed from
Huntsmead.

Impact on Neighbours

7.3  In assessing the issue of the massing of the proposed first floor extension on
adjacent properties nos. 15 and 16 Botmead Road and 22 Huntsmead, the
following were taken into account:

e The reduced size of the proposal significantly reduces the impact on
22 Huntsmead following the submission of revised drawings. The first
floor extension would now be set back by 5.6m from the boundary line;

e The proposed first floor extension is adjacent to part of the south
elevation of 16 Botmead Road with a separating distance of approx.
12m. The raised roofline would obscure the current view of the gable
end of no.21 Huntsmead mainly from the bedroom, bathroom and
utility area. However, this impact is lessened by the lower level of the
application site compared to no.16 and the view of the skyline from the
kitchen and dining room areas would remain unobstructed; and

e The gable end (north side) of the proposed extension would be some
11m from the side elevation of 15 Botmead Road. It is considered that
this distance, and the fact that the application site is at a lower level,
would render the any potential overbearing impact on the north side to
an acceptable level.

7.4  The issue of overlooking was assessed with the following considerations:

e The rooflights proposed on the southwesterly roof slope of the
extension are intended to provide additional natural light to the
proposed playroom, rather than outlook and it is considered that there
would not be a significant impact of overlooking from these windows.
However, a condition requiring these windows to be obscure glazed
and top opening would mitigate any potential impact on the privacy of



7.5

7.6

8.1

the occupiers of 16 Botmead Road;

e |t is considered that the overlooking from the proposed first floor
window in the northwesterly gable end of the proposed extension
towards 15 Botmead Road is not significantly greater than the
overlooking to this property from the rear elevation of the existing
house. Nonetheless a condition requiring this window to be obscure
glazed would alleviate this concern; and

e In assessing overlooking from the proposed front dormer towards no.
19 Huntsmead, it is considered that this would be no more than that
normally experienced between houses which face across the road and
as there is a distance of over 30m between the two frontages, which
far exceeds the Council's space around dwellings criteria.

In assessing the issue of overshadowing, it is considered that the proposal
would not cause significant loss of sunlight to surrounding properties, as the
path of the sun would track in an arc to the south which would mainly result in
the overshadowing of the host property rather then neighbours.

The concerns of neighbours that the proposed extended granny annex may
become a separate dwelling unit are mitigated by recommended condition
no.2 (NB this was also a condition of the previous approval in 1989).

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in
accordance with Policies H18 and E20 of the Local Plan and is therefore
recommended for approval.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2. The proposed accommodation shall at all times be used for residential
purposes ancillary to that of 21 Huntsmead and shall at no time form a
separate unit of accommodation.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as a separate residential unit would
be undesirable in this location in accordance with Policy H6 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

3. The roof lights shall be obscure-glazed and top opening, and the window
on the north-west elevation shall be obscure-glazed before the
development hereby permitted is first occupied and thereafter retained in
that form at all times.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining properties in
accordance with Policy H18 of the Northampton Local Plan.

4. The external walls and roof of the extension shall be constructed with



materials of the same type, texture and colour as the external walls and
roof of the existing building.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity to ensure that the extension
harmonises with the existing building in accordance with Policy H18 of the
Northampton Local Plan.

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
None

12. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN
12.1 In reaching the above recommendations, regard has been given to securing

the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan together
with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: Date:

Author: Elllie Williams 30/09/2009

Development Control Manager Agreed: Gareth Jones 12/09/2009







O

Agenda ltem 1

De

&

f;‘

*’f«;ﬂ

HMO
UGH C N C

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27 October 2009

DIRECTORATE:

HEAD OF PLANNING:

APP: N/2009/0765

WARD:

APPLICANT:
AGENT:

REFERRED BY:
REASON:

DEPARTURE:

Planning and Regeneration
Susan Bridge

Part retrospective three storey side
extension, single storey extensions, dormer
window and velux windows to existing
building , front boundary fence at 2 The
Drive/3 The Crescent.

Kingsley

Crescent Homes Ltd
Ellis Architectural Design

Councillor A Simpson

Long history of applications on site, out of
keeping with primarily residential area,
widespread concern from local residents

No

APPLICATION FOR DETERMINATION:

1 RECOMMENDATION

1. REFUSAL for the following reason:

By reason of its design, height and relationship with the existing

building,

the side extension forms an incongruous and

discordant feature, detrimental to character and appearance of
the host building and that of the surrounding streetscene
contrary to Policy 2 of the Regional Plan and Policy E20 of the
Northampton Local Plan and the aims and objectives of PPS1.

2 Authorise an Enforcement Notice requiring the demolition of the
unauthorised side extension which forms part of this application
with a compliance period of 6 months.



2.1

2.1

3.1

41

4.2

4.3

THE PROPOSAL

This is a full planning application relating to an existing care home at 2
The Drive/ 3 The Crescent which includes the following principal
elements:

e Single storey rear extensions to provide ancillary office space
and two additional en-suites;

e A 3 storey side extension comprising lift shaft, entrance hall and
provision of en-suites to some of the existing bedrooms with
solar panels to front facing roofslope;

e A 1.8m high close boarded fence to front of site along common
boundary with 1 The Crescent and along the front boundary
parallel with The Drive; and

e A rear facing dormer window and velux rooflights to the existing
building.

The 3 storey side extension in the current submission projects by
approximately 3.2m from the side facing main wall of the host building
and is approximately 7.7m deep. As the side extension is well under
construction the application has been advertised as part retrospective.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site is located in Kingsley Ward at the junction of The Drive and
The Crescent and comprises a residential care home for the elderly
which, has been extended considerably over the years. It is
approximately 2km north of Northampton town centre. No.2 The Drive
lies at the southwestern end of the Drive and faces towards Abington
Grove. The application site is situated within a primarily residential
area as defined by the Northampton Local Plan.

PLANNING HISTORY

The property has an extensive planning history dating back to 1981
when permission was granted for use of the site as a residential care
home. The prevailing planning permission restricts the use to a
maximum of 33 residents.

In December 2005, an application for full planning permission (ref.
N/2005/1155) was refused for large two storey and single storey
extensions to the home on the grounds of over-development, impact on
neighbouring properties and on nearby trees. This was dismissed at
appeal on 5 December 2006 on grounds of impact on amenity of
neighbours and impact on the streetscene.

In June 2009, planning permission was granted (ref. N/2009/0273) for
ground and first floor extensions to the home of a significantly smaller
scale than the 2005 application. Part of that approval included the
erection of a first floor extension above an existing ground floor side



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

projection. The ground floor element has been demolished and work is
well advanced on replacing it with a 3-storey side extension. However
this extension is larger than the N/2009/0273 approval and thereby
represents a breach of planning control. Following investigation by the
Council's Planning Enforcement Section the current planning
application was submitted last month with the objective of regularising
the breach.

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:
PPS1 — Delivering Sustainable Development
PPG 13 — Transport

East Midlands Regional Plan 2009
Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design

Northampton Borough Local Plan
E11 Trees
E20 — New Development

Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG Parking

CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Internal
Access Officer: no objections

Arboricultural Officer: no objections or tree protection measures
necessary

External

County Highways: No objections in principle to the extensions
however it is noted that the existing vehicle crossover on to the Drive is
to be removed and therefore would result in loss of 2 off road parking
spaces. It was noted that at the time of the previous application there
was a significant shortfall in parking and additional spaces were
requested and noted that most visitors parking is on street and most
spaces are currently taken up along both frontages. The 2 car spaces



6.4

7

are to be retained and vehicle crossover reinstated. 2m by 2m visibility
splays are to be shown where the new fence meets the vehicle access
or the fence reduced to 0.6m high for the first 2m.

Councillors

The application has been referred to Planning Committee by Clir
Simpson for the following reasons:

The site has a long history of numerous applications often
constantly pushing the boundaries of what is acceptable

The current site is becoming a massive complex that is out of
keeping with this primarily residential area

There is widespread concern from local residents

It was previously suggested that the area be considered for
conservation status and although not progressed that still raises
a question over this application and its impact

Neighbours

6.5

1 letter of objection received from no. 11 The Drive and 1

from 1 the Crescent:-

>

Y

vV V VYV VvV 'V

The side extension is out of scale and keeping with the original
building and has not followed the plans for which permission
was given

Retrospective Planning permission should not be given for this
blatant and cynical disregard of planning legislation.

Adverse impact on character and appearance of the Drive

Are inaccuracies on the submitted plans- the roof line is shown
as being below that of the existing roof and is at least as high in
reality, the new wall line is also shown as being 200mm outside
the existing wall while in reality it is double this

Parking issues- is difficult to understand why the owner is
wishing to remove 2 off road parking spaces

Proposed extension should not visually dominate the original
dwelling and should not be detrimental to its original appearance
Extension adversely impacts on symmetrical design of original
building and impacts on streetscene and is prominent

Design makes its visually dominant, out of character and
overbearing,

Would be no access to any parking and removal of spaces
would be a retrograde step and detrimental to residents

APPRAISAL

Policy context and Principal Considerations




71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The main issues to consider in this case are the impact on the
appearance and character of the original building and the locality and
impact on living conditions of neighbouring properties.

In determining this application, Policy E20 is the main policy contained
within the Northampton Local Plan relating to the proposed scheme
and states that planning permission will be granted for new
development subject to the design adequately reflecting the character
of its surroundings in terms of layout, siting, form, scale and use of
appropriate materials and the development being designed in a
manner which ensures adequate standards of privacy, daylight and
sunlight. Policy 2 of the Regional Plan and PPS1 emphasise the need
for good design in all development. Paragraph 34 of the PPS1 states
that local planning authorities should plan positively for the
achievement of high quality design for all development.

Impact on appearance and character of the area

Proposed extensions

It should be noted that the proposed single storey extensions already
benefit from planning permission under consent N/2009/0273. As such
the main consideration is how the proposed 3-storey side extension
impacts upon the streetscene and visual amenity of the area.

The proposed roof form of the side extension is approximately 2.7m
higher than the previously approved first floor extension thereby
resulting in a more bulky built form and increasing the visual impact of
the development. The extension has been constructed in blockwork
while the existing building is built predominantly in red brick. It is the
applicant’s intention to render the extension which officers have
reservations over given that the materials would not match the host
building.

The front wall of the side extension is in line with the principal front wall
on the host building and, given its size, bulky roof form and lack of set -
back, does not appear as a subordinate feature when viewed from the
street. The roof form of the extension features a gable to the western
end (to the highway) and a hip to the east (to the host building). The
roof ridge of the extension is at approximately the same height as that
of the principal existing roof but higher than the immediately adjoining
existing roof form. As a consequence of these circumstances, the
extension appears as a visually awkward addition to the original
building.

Although the side extension is to some extent screened from view from
The Drive by existing tree planting to the boundary, this is not sufficient
to mitigate the visual harm arising. For these reasons, it represents an
incongruous form of development that detracts from the appearance
and character of the streetscene and host building, which is



compounded by the site’s prominent location at the junction of The
Drive and The Crescent. It is considered, therefore, that the side
extension is unacceptable and contrary to national and Development
Policy, which promote high quality, design.

7.61 Although the design of the side extension is considered to be

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.1

unacceptable, it is acknowledged that the proposed solar panels,
dormer and rooflights are all of an appearance and size in keeping with
the host building.

Front boundary fence

The submitted plans indicate the provision of a 1.8m high front
boundary fence along the roadside boundary parallel to The Drive and
along the common boundary with the adjacent no.1 The Crescent. The
proposed fence along The Drive would represent a continuation of an
existing boundary fence. It is considered that this aspect of the
proposals would be acceptable subject to the details of the appearance
fence being controlled by the Council as local planning authority.

Impact on amenity and living conditions of neighbouring properties

As stated above, the proposed single storey extensions have approval
under N/2009/0273. At that stage it was concluded that given the
relationship with the adjacent properties that there would be no undue
detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity.

The proposed 3 storey side extension, given its position on the side of
the property away from the adjacent house no.1 The Crescent and
bearing in mind the separation distances of approximately 21 metres to
the front main walls of the nearest houses on the opposite side of The
Drive, would not result in any adverse impact on residential amenity in
terms of overshadowing, loss of outlook / privacy or overbearing
effects. The side extension is also partly screened from The Drive by
existing tree planting which acts as something of buffer between the
care home and houses on the western side of The Drive.

It is also considered that, as the proposed development would only
result in one additional bedroom over and above the number currently
permitted, there would not be a materially significant increase in noise
and disturbance above that which is already apparent from the existing
nursing home.

Impact on existing Trees

There are three semi-mature trees within the curtilage of the site
directly adjacent to the side extension. The Council’'s Arboricultural
Officer raises no objections to the impact on these features given that
they offer limited contribution to the streetscene. He has also advised
that the trees are not worthy of protection. In respect to the appeal



712

713

7.14

7.15

8

8.1

application N/2005/1155 the Planning Inspector raised concern re the
impact on the Beech Tree adjacent to the site. This tree is further away
from the side extension and it is considered that it would not be
affected adversely by the current proposal. There is some intermittent
tree planting along the side boundary of the front garden area with the
adjacent property no.1 The Crescent. It is considered that the impact
of the proposed fence on these features would be limited particularly
given that there is an existing low metal fence along this boundary.

Parking and Highway issues

There would be no increase in number of residents to the existing
home. The County Parking SPG outlines that the parking requirement
for care homes is 2 parking spaces per 5 residents. As a result, there
would be no requirement for additional parking at the site and it is
therefore considered that there is adequate on street parking on the
adjacent streets without significantly harming highway safety.

Although the Highway Authority raise concern that the proposed
closing up of the existing access on to The Drive would result in loss of
some off street parking, it is considered that as the removal of access
would not require planning permission it would be unreasonable to
resist the application on these grounds. Furthermore, there are no
prevailing planning conditions requiring that parking be maintained on
site. It should be noted that there is limited off-street parking available
at the premises and as such at present visitors to the home tend to
park in the surrounding streets or travel by alternative modes of
transport. Although these arrangements currently place some pressure
on the on-street parking capacity in the vicinity of the use, the level of
additional demand arising from the development is not considered to
be sufficient to justify refusal of the application.

The Highway Authority also advises that visibility splays should be
provided on either side of the access. However, this advice is
superseded by the proposed closure of the access.

Other considerations

The applicant is currently using the front garden area as a space for
storing building materials during the ongoing construction process.
The applicants have confirmed that it is their intention to re-instate this
area to garden following the completion of building works; as such this
would not require planning permission.

CONCLUSION

The development is considered to be unacceptable given the design of

the side extension and its relationship to the host building which would be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the host building and



surrounding area. The proposed development is recommended for refusal
and considered to be contrary to Policy 2 of the Regional Plan and Policy
E20 of the Local Plan and aims and objectives of PPS1.

8.2 As the development has commenced it is also recommended that
Committee resolve to give authorisation to officers to issue an
Enforcement Notice requiring demolition of the side extension by reason of
its unacceptable design, height and relationship with the existing building
which forms an incongruous and discordant feature detrimental to the
character and appearance of the host building and surrounding
streetscene.

9. CONDITIONS

9.1 Not relevant.

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

10.1 None.

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1 None

12. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

12.1 In reaching the attached recommendations, regard has been given to

securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: | Date:

Author: Jonathan Moore | 8/10/09

Development Control Manager Agreed: | Gareth Jones 9/9/09







Agenda ltem 1

2a

&

f;‘

&"’
Q
BOROUGH COUNCIL

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27 October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
APP: N/2009/0720

Change of use of ground floor number 33
only from a Bank (Class A2) to a Bingo Hall
(Class D2) and the formation of a new access
door on to Abington Street. (WNDC
Consultation) at 33 Abington Street.

and

N/2009/0772
Change of use to amusement centre (WNDC
Consultation) at 31 to 33 Abington Street.

WARD: Castle

APPLICANT: Ablethird Ltd

AGENT: Mr Robert Gillard

REFERRED BY: Head of Planning

REASON: Due to significance of proposals
DEPARTURE: No

APPLICATIONS FOR CONSULTATION BY WNDC:

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 Objects to both consultations for the following reason:
The proposal for an amusement centre in this location will reduce the
opportunity to bring back retail use to a significant unit in Abington
Street, contrary to the advice in PPS6 — Planning for Town Centres and
saved Policies R5 and R6 of the Northampton Local Plan.

2, THE PROPOSALS

2.1 The proposals are for two differing parts of 31-33 Abington Street,



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

formerly the Woolwich Bank on the entrance to the Grosvenor Centre.
The existing premises have an identified lawful use for A2 purposes
and it is proposed to change this to a bingo hall / amusement centre
(please note that these two different descriptions are used for the same
type of proposals). The proposed uses are qualified as D2 use in the
Use Class Order.

N/2009/0720 — this proposal is for one half of the existing ground floor
of the bank unit that would be subdivided along the former delineation
of the premises recreating No.33 Abington Street for the purposes of a
bingo hall. Opening hours are proposed as 9.00am to 10.30pm
Monday to Saturday and 10.00am to 10.00pm Sundays.

N/2009/0772 — this proposal subdivides the unit roughly in two at
ground floor level (at right angles to the former proposal) resulting in
new premises to the rear and leaving a retail A1/A2 unit to the front
facing out onto Abington Street. The rearmost property would be used
as a gaming centre in a similar manner to the N/2009/0720 proposal.
Opening hours are proposed to be 9.00am to 11.00pm every day.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site of the two applications has been the Woolwich since the early
1990s when it changed from A1 retail use after a 1991 appeal decision.
The Woolwich closed in the summer of 2007 and was later acquired by
the applicant. It has not been in active use at ground floor level since
the Woolwich vacated apart from some temporary retail activities.

The site is one of the most prominent commercial positions in the town
centre adjacent to an important node where pedestrians pass in great
numbers every day of the week. It is also significant due to its position
at the Abington Street entrance to the Grosvenor Centre, the principal
shopping mall in the centre of town.

Both sites are contained in the ground floor of a three storey building
with what appears to be offices or possibly residential uses on the
upper floors accessed via a high security gateway at the side of the
premises and directly adjacent to the Grosvenor Centre doors. Nos. 31
and 33 Abington Street have merged at ground floor level into one
open-plan retail-type space with fully glazed elevations and a fascia
canopy to the street.

PLANNING HISTORY

Formerly an A1 retail unit up until the early 1990s, a building society
(A2) use was allowed at appeal in application reference 91/0130.

A variety of minor applications for development related to the A2 use
were approved up to 2003.



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

N/2008/0156 — change of use from building societ(}/ / bank to an adult
gaming centre — refused and appeal dismissed 22" January 2009.

In dismissing the appeal, the Inspector states his concern that the
amusement centre use of this building would harm the attractiveness of
an important part of the town centre and the cumulative impact on the
vibrancy and vitality of the town centre would be detrimental. He notes
that the applicant / appellant concedes that the loss of retail would be
harmful, but contends there were no serious offers of retail use and the
Inspector notes the fact that there is no marketing evidence submitted
by the appellant/ applicant demonstrating this.

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:
PPS6 — Planning for Town Centres

East Midlands Regional Plan 2009

Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design

Encourages highway access and parking that improves both safety and
the quality of public space, whilst seeking design that reduces crime
and the fear of crime.

Northampton Borough Local Plan

Saved Policy R5 — Town Centre changes of use

Saved Policy R6 — Town Centre primary shopping frontages

Central Area Action Plan

Emerging document who'’s vision seeks ‘a distinctive retail offer that
combines the best in major high street names in Greyfriars (nee
Grosvenor) with niche and specialist retail and leisure in Northampton’s
traditional streets and market'.
CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS

Internal

Environmental Health — No observations

Access Officer — no objections

Town Centre Manager — Objects — increase in non-retail activity would



6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

harm the vitality and vibrancy of the town centre.

Regeneration — comments awaited.

Neighbours

No neighbour notifications sent out by NBC, but Legal and General’s
agents have submitted comments to NBC (via WNDC) as owner of the
Grosvenor Centre. They objection to N/2009/0720 — on the grounds of
previous planning objections being unaltered, existing and emerging
policy and regeneration negotiations, principally those surrounding the
Grosvenor Centre, supporting the retail use of town centre units above
other uses such as amusements. Concern about the harm of
amusement uses to the vitality of the town centre and the future
viability of the Grosvenor Centre.

APPRAISAL

In determining the 2008 appeal the Inspector identified the main issue
as the effect of the proposed non-retail use on a primarily retail area in
terms o the vitality and viability of the town centre and its visual impact.
A copy of the Inspector’s decision notice is appended for information.

Saved Policy R6 of the Northampton Local Plan seeks to retain 90% of
the length of primary frontages in the centre as shop uses and to stop
two or more non-shop businesses opening next to one another. The
Abington Street frontage in question is already well beneath that 90%
ratio of shop frontage over other uses and it is material to consider that
the present bank use, A2, could be changed to A1 retail use without
the benefit express planning consent from WNDC.

To summarise, saved Local Plan policy supports retail use in this
location above all other uses.

If saved Local Plan Policy R6 as explained above is overridden, saved
Policy R5 states that the loss of a shop or a bank (for example) would
be acceptable where the appearance and characteristics would be
appropriate to the locality, amongst certain other criteria.

In short, it is considered that maintaining a shop or bank-type of use in
this location is important to protect the retail appearance and character
of the area. Changing No0.33 Abington Street (N/2009/0720) as
opposed to both No.31 and No0.33 combined in the previous (2008)
proposal remains an unacceptable harm to the town centre.

Placing the bingo centre behind the Abington Street frontage in
proposal N/2009/0772 is presumably aimed at reducing the impact of
the harmful impacts outlined above and repeated by the Planning
Inspector in his decision earlier this year, but notwithstanding the
applicant’s efforts, would still result in an amusement centre frontage at



7.7

7.8

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

10.

10.1

the right-hand side of the entrance to the Grosvenor Centre, where
there is a particularly high footfall area and a highly visible position to
members of the public. This is considered unacceptable in terms of
impact on the appearance and character of the town centre contrary to
saved Local Plan Policy R5.

Whilst the amount of amusement centre frontage is reduced in these
schemes when compared to the refused 2008 proposal and as
dismissed by the Inspector, the unacceptably harmful effect remains,
as does the conflict with Local Plan Policies R5 and R6, which is
underlined by the emerging Central Area Action Plan (CAAP).

Finally, it is noted that the site freehold has been held by the applicant
for almost 18 months and they state that the property has sat empty for
2 years. Without any evidence as part of these applications of active
A1 or A2 marketing at any recent time, it can only be concluded that
the applicant may be partly responsible for the vacancy situation.

CONCLUSION

It is acknowledged that the primary frontage in this part of the town
centre has less than 90% of its length in retail use where saved Policy
R6 of the Local Plan seeks to retain at least this amount of retail
frontage.

Both application sites have the potential to be lawfully used for both A2
and A1 retail use. It is considered that these uses should be retained
unless the criteria of saved Local Plan Policy R5 are met, not least to
strive towards the retail frontage aims of saved Plan Policy R6. One of
the criteria of Local Plan Policy R5 that is a prerequisite of losing a
shop in the town centre states that the resulting appearance and
characteristic of the proposal must be appropriate to the premises and
locality. In both of these proposals the amusement centre/ bingo hall
will be significantly noticeable in the streetscene and locality and are
considered inappropriate to the premises and locality.

For these reasons the proposal is considered a retrograde step for the
vitality and viability of the town centre retail environment and contrary
to saved Policies R5 and R6 of the Northampton Local Plan and the
guidance of PPS6 Planning for Town Centres.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None



11. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

11.1 In reaching the attached recommendations regard has been given to
securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: | Date:
Author: Richard Boyt 14/10/09
Development Control Manager Agreed: | Gareth Jones 14/10/09




\

El Sub 518
Banh

15
n
!

N

NORTHAMFTON

BEOROUGH COUNCIL

mi  Planning

infringes Crovun Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence number: 100019655




Y - = .
~, ~ Appeal Decision s
Temple Quay House

’

7 ™ . .. 2 The Square
ﬁ 2 . Site visit made on 9 January 2009 Temple Quay
=, o

Bristol BS1 6PN

0, & by Martyn Single DipTP MRTPI T e

[ o
Glapta ©° gow. uk

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of Decision date: 22
State for Communities and Local Government January 2009

Appeal Ref: APP/M9570/A/08/2086758
31-33 Abington Street, Northampton, NN1 2AW

+ The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

+ The appeal is made by Mr Amarjit Mann against the decision of West Northamptonshire
Development Corporaticn,

+ The application ref. 08/0156/COUWNN, dated 24 April 2008, was refused by notice
dated 4 August 2008,

+ The development proposed is change of use from a building society bank to an adult
gaming centre (sui generis).

Decision
1. I dismiss the appeal.
Main issue

2. The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the proposed non-retail use on a
primary retail area in terms of the vitality and viability of the town centre and
its visual impact.

Planning Policy

3. The development plan includes the Northamptonshire County Structure Plan
adopted in 2001 and the Northampton Local Plan 1993-2006, adopted in 1997.
Policies R5 and R6 of the latter have been saved by direction of the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government and are relevant to this appeal.
Policy R5 provides that planning permission will be granted for change of use
from a Class Al shop in the town centre where certain criteria are satisfied, one

of which is that the appearance and characteristics of the use would be
appropriate to the premises and locality.

4. Although the appeal property has been previously used for a purpose within
Class A2 (financial and professional services) there is a right under Part 3 Class
D of Schedule 2 to The Town and Country Planning {(General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 to change to Class Al with deemed planning
permission. It is not inappropriate, therefore, to have regard to these criteria
in my consideration of this appeal, as the marketing option remains open to
revert to a Class Al use without needing planning permission from the
Corporation. 1 consider this to be pertinent having regard to the strategic
objectives of the emerging Central Area Action Plan for the regeneration of the
town centre, one of which is to encourage shoppers to meet their comparison




Appeal Decision APP/M9570/A/08/2086758

needs more locally. To do so there would continue to be a need to retain a
portfolio of available Class Al premises in the primary shopping frontages.

Policy R6 includes the appeal property within such a frontage (P02) wherein
retail uses should not fall below 90% frontage length and there should not be
two or more premises in such uses. P02 differs from other primary frontages,
consisting of only four premises, two of these being large ‘department stores’.
It does include the return frontage of nos. 31-33 Abington Street into Wood
Street which leads into the covered Grosvenor Shopping Centre.

I have also had regard in my decision to national planning policy in Planning

£y

Reasons

7.

10.

The appeal site comprises ground floor corner premises in a highly prominent
and important position in the primary shopping area. On the occasion of my
lunchtime visit both adjeoining streets were very busy with pedestrians, a
significant number using the Wood Street entrance to the Grosvenor Shopping
Centre alongside the appeal property. Despite the presence of recently vacated
premises the town centre appeared relatively vibrant. The property has a
frontage to both streets, the submissions indicating that its use for non-retail
means that the retail frontage P02 falls significantly below the 90% sought by
Policy R6.

The appellant has provided extracts from a number of appeal decision letters
whereby it has been accepted that such a use is not necessarily inappropriate in
a primary retail frontage. However, I believe the position of nos. 31-33 at the
entrance to the shopping centre makes this a particularly important location in
terms of the attractiveness of the wider town centre for traders and shoppers,
and an unsuitable use would cause harm to the centre.

The Corporation has expressed concern at the cumulative effect of this type of
use in the town centre, a view shared by some of the third parties. Whilst I
may have a different view with regard to some premises in the street I share
their concern in respect of this particular site because of its specially important
position. It is not just, in my view, a matter of the number of such premises. 1
did see that there are already three similar uses in the street, two operated by
Agora. The appellant indicates that the use at no. 36 would cease if permission
was granted for the appeal site but there is no formal mechanism within the
appeal before me to secure its closure and reversion to Class Al.

It has been put to me on behalf of the appellant that the appeal property would
have a decorative window display that would be better than other non-retail
uses that could occupy the premises without needing permission. This
contention is not supported by what I saw of the appellant’s other premises. In
both nearby premises, views into them are restricted by screens at the back of
the window display, I presume to comply with requirements of the Gambling
Act. The displays within the windows could not be described as attractive or
interesting, one containing just a small number of A4 framed Gambling Act
Certificates, the other containing a range of objects associated with gambling
such as miniature roulette wheels and fruit machines. There was no suggestion

that there would be any element of retailing from the properties.



Appeal Decision APP/M9570/A/08/2086758

11.

12.

13.

On the other hand I saw a substantial majority of properties, in both Class Al
and A2 use where views into the premises were available from the street. It
appeared to me that estate agents and building society windows held more of
interest to the shopper in the street scene, contributing to the attractiveness of
the town centre as a shopping destination. By contrast the amusement centre
frontages were bland, uninviting and uninteresting and in such a prominent
position over such a length of frontage would be wholly unacceptable.

The applicant’s letter dated 24™ April 2008 concedes that the loss of a potential
retail use would be harmful but that there had been no serious offers for retail
use in the unit. However, no evidence of marketing of the property has been
provided with the appeal in support of the appellant’s case.

Having regard to the above factors I conclude that the proposed use of the
property would be unacceptable. It would conflict with Policies R5 and R6 of
the Northampton Local Plan 1993-2006 and the emerging objectives for the
regeneration of the town centre. It would have an adverse effect on a primary
retail area both in terms of the vitality and viability of the town centre and its
visual impact.

Martyn Single

INSPECTOR




Agenda ltem 1

2le

&

f;‘

&"’
Q
Sulcn CounTiy

0 IL

O

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 27" October 2009

DIRECTORATE: Planning and Regeneration
HEAD OF PLANNING: Susan Bridge
APP: N/2009/0744: Reserved matters application including

appearance, landscaping, layout and scale
pursuant to outline consent WN/2006/0013
dated 19.04.2007 — Erection of 231 dwellings,
roads and sewers and public open space.

WARD: Old Duston

APPLICANT: David Wilson Homes / Belway Homes
AGENT: None

REFERRED BY: Head of Planning

REASON: Major Application

DEPARTURE: Yes

APPLICATION FOR CONSULTATION BY WNDC:
1. RECOMMENDATION
1.1 That the Council raise NO OBJECTIONS for the following reason:

It is considered the development would be in accordance with the
British Timken Masterplan and Development Brief and Design Code.

1.2 If WNDC are minded to approve the application then conditions are
requested to be attached to any approval notice to deal with:
¢ Unexpected contamination
e Submission of an Aboricultural Impact Assessment report
¢ Noise — to ensure that the impact of noise has been considered on
the residential properties located adjacent to the employment area.

2. THE PROPOSAL

2.1 The submitted application seeks permission for the third phase of
residential development of the British Timken site consisting of 231



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

dwellings and public open space consisting of parkland and playing
fields.

A mix of 1 and 2 bedroom apartments and 2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom
houses including 50 affordable units are proposed.

In support of the application, the following have been submitted:

o Design and Access Statement

. Waste Audit

o Energy and Sustainability Report
J Design Code Requirements

SITE DESCRIPTION

The former British Timken site is located at Duston, north of Main Road
and west of Bants Lane on the edge of Duston Village. The former
industrial site has been cleared and the development of new residential
areas and associated infrastructure works has commenced.

The application site (phase 3) is part of the wider redevelopment of the
former industrial site. Phase 3 lies at the centre of the site and
consists of an area of 8.75 ha which will be accessed from Cotswold
Way to the north.

PLANNING HISTORY

Since ¢1942 the site was operated by British Timken as a
manufacturing plant for engineering bearings. In 2002 a decision was
taken to close the site which then employed 950 workers.

In September 2004 Northampton Borough Council resolved to granted
approval in principle for the redevelopment of the site to a mixed-use
development comprising business, industry, housing, sports facilities,
and public open space.

Outline planning permission (WN/2006/0013) was subsequentlx
granted by WNDC subject to conditions and a legal agreement on 19"
April 2007 for a mixed use development of the site comprising
employment development (offices and light/general industrial), housing,
public open space, community recreation facilities and mixed
commercial/residential/community development.

In granting outline consent for redevelopment of the site a condition
and planning obligations were imposed requiring the submission of a
Masterplan and Development Brief and Design Code (DBDC) and
Sustainable Strategy for the site.

The Masterplan and DBDC were approved by WNDC on 4™ September
2007 for development control purposes in the conception,



4.6

5.1

5.2

consideration and determination of Reserved Matter Planning
Applications.

Further applications submitted are as follows:

07/0272/REMWNN — Reserved matters application including layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping pursuant to Outline Consent (ref.
WN/2006/0013) for the erection of 77 dwellings, roads and sewers.
(Phase1). — Approved 30" November 2007

07/0278/REMWNN - Reserved matters application including layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping pursuant to Outline Consent (ref.
WN/2006/0013) for the erection of 22 dwellings, garages and all
associated infrastructure works. (Withdrawn).

08/0088/REMWNN — Reserved matters application including layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping pursuant to Outline Consent (ref.
WN/2006/0013) for the erection of 2 dwellings. Revision to planning
permission 07/0272/REMWNN. — Approved 24™ April 2008.

08/0065/REMWNN — Reserved matters application including layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping pursuant to Outline Consent (ref.
WN/2006/0013) for the erection of 24 dwellings, garages and all
associated infrastructure works.. — Approved 7" May 2008.

08/0112/REMWNN - Reserved matters application including layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping pursuant to Outline Consent (ref.
WN/2006/0013) for the erection of 167 dwellings roads and sewers
(Phase 2). — Approved July 2008.

PLANNING POLICY

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires a planning application to be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The current Development Plan comprises of the East
Midlands Regional Plan, the saved policies of the Northamptonshire
County Structure Plan and Northampton Local Plan 1997.

National Policies:

PPS 1 — Delivering Sustainable Development

PPS3 — Housing

PPG4 — Industrial and Commercial Development and Small Firms
PPG13 — Transport

PPG17 — Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation

PPS22 — Renewable Energy

PPS23 — Planning and Pollution Control

PPG24 — Noise

PPG25 — Development and Flood Risk



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

East Midlands Regional Plan 2009

Policy 2 — Promoting Better Design

Encourages highway access and parking that improves both safety and
the quality of public space, whilst seeking design that reduces crime
and the fear of crime.

Northampton Borough Local Plan

E1 — Landscape and Open Space

E19 — Implementing Development

E20 — New Development

E39 — Renewable Energy

E40 — Crime and Vandalism

H1 & H4 — Sites for major new residential development

H7 - Housing Development Outside Primarily Residential Areas
H14 — Open space and Children’s Play Areas

H17 — Mobility Housing

H32 — Affordable Housing

B14 — Development for Non-Business Uses in Business Areas
T4 & T12 — Impacts on the road network

L1 — Existing recreational facilities

L6 — Maintenance of Public Open Space

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Northamptonshire County Parking Standards SPG 2003
Planning out Crime in Northamptonshire SPG 2004
Affordable Housing

CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
Internal

Public Protection - The majority of the issues within the remit of this
section have already been addressed by conditions at the outline
stage. In respect to contamination, the site investigation, risk
assessment and the majority of the remedial works have been dealt
with under conditions on the outline consent and the outstanding
remedial works (topsoil capping and gas mitigation measures) have
been agreed in principle and will be validated as the development
progresses. It is however recommended that the unsuspected
contamination condition is imposed in case any unforeseen
contamination is discovered as the development progresses. In
respect to noise, traffic noise mitigation measures are not required at
this stage of the development, however there is some concern about
the layout of the area of the site that is immediately adjacent to the
commercial phases of the development. It is requested that the
applicant should be asked to demonstrate that noise has been
considered in the design of the layout of this part of the site.



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

7.1

7.2

7.3

Arboricultural Officer - There are numerous trees located within the
proposed development site which require consideration. In accordance
with section 7.3 of the submitted Arboricultural Survey undertaken on
behalf of the developers by Symbiosis Consulting and dated 16"
November 2007: ‘As the proposals for each phased are prepared, an
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) report should be submitted
with the finalised layout to support the planning application. This will
include a tree protection plan (TPP), which will clearly identify the trees
to be removed and those to be retained. The precise location for the
erection of protective fencing and any other relevant physical protection
measures, including ground protection, to safeguard the root protection
area will be marked on a construction exclusion zone on this plan. This
will allow one specific element of condition no. 37 to be discharged.” |
would recommend that prior to any commencement of development
that the above information is submitted for approval.

NBC Planning Enforcement — No comments received

Access Officer — No objections.

Housing Strategy — No comments received.

Outdoor Environment Officer - No comments received.

Local Planning Policy - No comments received.

Regeneration - No comments received.

Street Cleansing Services - No comments received.

Councillors - No comments received.

APPRAISAL

The proposal is an application for approval of reserved matters
covering appearance, landscaping, layout and scale made to the
WNDC. The site in question is identified within the Northampton Local
Plan as being a location for business development.

Principle of Development

The principle of the development is established by the outline planning
permission for the comprehensive development of the former British
Timken site granted by WNDC in April 2007.

Design

Within the Masterplan, a series of character areas have been defined

according to their location within the site. The application site (Phase 3)
is situated at the centre of the site and is bounded by existing



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

residential development on the western boundary, Phase 2 on the
southern boundary and proposed playing field / open parkland to the
northern and eastern boundary that also forms part of this application.

The two character areas within the phase 3 proposals are defined in
the Design Code as Formal Residential and Employment Interface.
The Design Code further specifies house types appropriate for each
Character Area.

There are a mixture of house types within the proposed development,
large double fronted detached houses, single fronted detached houses,
semi-detached, terraced and flats. There is a small area within Phase 3
which has been designed as a buffer between the residential and
employment uses. The development here is higher density and
consists of three storey flats leading into Mews courtyards surrounded
by two storey semi-detached houses.

There are three key groups of buildings in the Phase 3 proposals, The
Crescent, The Northern Green and The Sports Ground Edge plus the
employment interface. These have been designed in accordance with
the principles established in the Design Code as follows:

The Crescent.

The Crescent features a contemporary architectural design which
follows on from Phase 2. It comprises a continuous frontage and
symmetrical arrangement on two and three storeys. With features
such as projecting double height square bay windows, a base storey of
banded brickwork and an attic storey which relates to historical
examples of Victorian formal architecture.

Northern Green.

The Northern Green has a continuous street frontage of mainly 2 — 2.5
storey detached houses providing enclosure to the open space in the
centre. The houses have a wide range of traditional architectural
detailing based on buildings within Northampton which are inspired by
the 1920’s Arts and Crafts movement.

Sports Ground Edge.

The Sports Ground Edge has a continuous street frontage and
asymmetrical arrangement set in a formal layout with a variety of
building types. They are a mixture of 2 and 2.5 storeys with features
detailing to Edwardian dwellings that surround the Northampton
Racecourse.

Employment Interface.

This area has been designed as a buffer between the residential and
employment uses. The 3 storey flats are a contemporary design as
suggested in the Design Code. The flats will have large areas of
glazing, balcony features and mono pitched roofs. The houses have
large areas of glazing. These buildings are on a larger scale and at a




7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

higher density than others on the site in response to the scale and
massing of the adjacent employment uses.

The Design Codes have been used as the basis for all the major
design principles incorporated into the proposals and are therefore
considered acceptable.

Density

The Design Code determines maximum and minimum densities for
each character area. The proposal for formal residential units in the
proposed development is 38.6 dwellings per hectare and falls within
the allowable density range of 35 — 40 dwellings per ha. The
employment interface dwellings give a density of 66.7 dwellings per ha.
This is higher than the maximum of 50 dwellings per ha stated in the
design code due to the number of flats proposed at this location. This
part of the site has been designed as such to act as a transitional
buffer between the employment area and the proposed residential
development in Phase 3. For this reason and because overall the total
number of dwellings within phase 3 does not exceed the maximum
density range of 236 units, the proposal is considered acceptable.

Affordable Housing

The Masterplan proposes a mix of house types and tenures including
22% affordable housing. The development has been designed to
provide a mix of housing throughout the site as follows:

12 no. 1 bed flats

12 no. 2 bed flats

11 no. 2 bed houses

12 no. 3 bed houses

3 no. 4 bed houses

This provides 50 affordable units which have been dispersed
throughout the site and agreed with NBC Housing Directorate.
Affordable housing provision is therefore considered satisfactory.

Mobility Housing.

The proposals incorporate the provision for 10% of the total number of
private and affordable dwellings to be constructed in accordance with
the requirements of Northampton Borough Council Mobility Housing
Design Guide. These units comprise a mixture of 1 and 2 bedroom
ground floor flats and 3 and 4 bedroom houses.

Access

There are two vehicular accesses into the site. At the southern end
access is from Main Road through the Phase 1 and 2 developments,
and at the northern end it is from Cotswold Avenue through the playing
fields and open parkland. Vehicular movement through the site has



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

8.1

been restricted with no direct vehicular link from Duston Village to
Cotswold Ave to prevent potential’ rat — runs’

The scheme takes into consideration the movement of pedestrians and
cyclists and provides alternatives to moving around the development in
a car.

The highway and parking standards for the whole of the British Timken
site have been agreed with County Council Sustainable Transport
Team as part of the DBDC process. The reserved matters application
appears to be in accordance with the design principles set out within
the DBDC in terms of car parking provision, highway specification and
treatment of footpath and cycle links.

Landscaping

The existing vegetation on the former British Timken site is limited. The
Masterplan therefore seeks, where possible, to retain and protect any
existing vegetation. The DBDC sets out design principles for these and
other areas of open space within the development.

There are 6 areas of identified open space within the phase 3 site.
These include 5 areas of open space within the development and an
area of parkland (2.32ha) to the north of the development area. The
treatment of these spaces within the reserved matters application are
generally as set out within the open space principles and would
therefore accord with the DBDC.

Residential Amenity

The application site would abut existing property immediately to the
south on Sir John Pascoe Way. Two properties side onto the
application site. Three blocks of maisonettes back onto the site. The
separation distances between these properties are considered to be
acceptable.

Within the site the proposed layout is generally considered to resultin a
satisfactory level of amenity for future occupiers. Concern has been
raised however by Borough Council Environmental Health officers
regarding the noise impact of the existing employment area on the
proposed residential units where these to two uses would be
immediately adjacent to each. It is requested that the applicant should
demonstrate that noise has been considered in the design of the layout
of this part of the site.

CONCLUSION

The design and layout of the scheme is considered acceptable as it
appears to accord with the British Timken Masterplan and



Development Brief and Design Code and is consistent with both local
and national planning policy.

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 British Timken Masterplan and Development Brief and Design Code
(DBDC).

10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1 None

11. SUMMARY AND LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN

11.1 In reaching the attached recommendations regard has been given to

securing the objectives, visions and priorities outlined in the Corporate
Plan together with those of associated Frameworks and Strategies.

Position: Name/Signature: | Date:

Author: Rowena Simpson | 7/10/09

Development Control Manager Agreed: | Gareth Jones 9/10/09




g

74

G OQ > 2 /

W 454 755
4 A.-,G.%oe @&”
\9@ &Q‘Nﬁ’%ﬁ

,\W,W)Gw) %“Nlo\\%&%%v@bd\

‘,wmﬁgv &%

,,,@.,of,c Q&V X
SR

94
7




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 List of Current Appeals and Inquiries
	9a N/2009/0685- Construction of Multi Use Games Area on land at Dayrell Road, Camp Hill.
	10 Items For Determination
	10a N/2009/0028LB- Proposed Demolition of Infirmary Building and Proposed Alterations and Extension to Remaining Buildings at Former St Edmunds Hospital Site, Wellingborough Road.
	10b N/2009/0606- Subdivision of Industrial Unit and Part Use as Builders Merchant (Sui Generis). External Changes Including and Altering and Creating Openings and Erection of 2m High Fence Around Yard at Unit 5 Minton Business Centre, Main Road Far Cotton.
	10c N/2009/0610- Erection of 4no Detached Houses with Associated Garages, Access and Parking on Building Plot to the Rear of 76 Church Way.
	10d N/ 2009/0644- First Floor Extension Above Annex (as amended by revised plans received on 11 September 2009) at 21 Huntsmead.
	10e N/2009/ 0765- Part Retrospective Three Storey Side Extension, Single Storey Extensions, Dormer Window and Velux Windows to Existing Building, Front and Boundary Fence at 2 The Drive/ 3 The Crescent
	12a N/2009/0720- Change of Use of Ground Floor From a Bank (Class A2) to a Bingo Hall (Class D2) and Formation of New Access Door on to Abington Street at 33 Abington Street and N/2009/0772- Change of Use to Amusement Centre at 31 to 33 Abington Street
	12b N/2009/0744- Reserved Matters Application Including: Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale, Pursuant to Outline Consent WN/2006/0013 dated 19.04.07- Erection of 231 Dwellings, Roads and Sewers and Public Open Space at Former British Timken Site, Main Road, Duston

